Public Document Pack

Service Director — Legal, Governance and

Commissioning

@ K i r klees Julie Muscroft

COUNCIL The Democracy Service

Civic Centre 3
High Street
Huddersfield
HD1 2TG

Tel: 01484 221000

Please ask for: Andrea Woodside

Email: andrea.woodside@kirklees.gov.uk
Monday 24 September 2018

Notice of Meeting
Dear Member
Cabinet

The Cabinet will meet in the Council Chamber - Town Hall, Huddersfield at
1.00 pm on Tuesday 2 October 2018.

This meeting will be live webcast. To access the webcast please go to the Council’s
website at the time of the meeting and follow the instructions on the page.

The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports
attached which give more details.

ﬂ Ay W‘j/

Julie Muscroft
Service Director — Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting.



The Cabinet members are:-

Member
Councillor Shabir Pandor
Councillor David Sheard

Councillor Masood Ahmed
Councillor Erin Hill (Currently on
Maternity Leave)

Councillor Viv Kendrick

Councillor Musarrat Khan
Councillor Naheed Mather
Councillor Peter McBride
Councillor Cathy Scott

Councillor Graham Turner

Responsible For:

Leader of the Council

Deputy Leader of the Council and holder of the
Deputy Leaders Cabinet Portfolio

Cabinet Member - Learning and Aspiration
Cabinet Member - Currently on Maternity Leave

Cabinet Member - Children (Statutory
responsibility for Children)

Cabinet Member - Public Health

Cabinet Member - Communities and Environment
Cabinet Member - Economy

Cabinet Member - Health, Housing and Social
Care

Cabinet Member - Corporate



Agenda
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached

1: Membership of the Committee

To receive apologies for absence of Members who are unable to
attend this meeting.

2: Minutes of previous meeting
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 29
August 2018.

3: Interests

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests.

4: Admission of the Public

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to
be discussed in private.

5: Deputations/Petitions

The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations

from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which
the body has powers and responsibilities.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a
deputation.

Pages



6: Public Question Time

The Committee will hear any questions from the general public.

7: Member Question Time

To consider questions from Councillors.

8: Council Budget Strategy Update Report 2019-22 7-54

To determine Cabinet’s approach to the annual update of the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). This is reported to
full Council each year, and sets a framework for the development of
draft spending plans for future years by officers and Cabinet.

Wards: All

Officer: Eamonn Croston, Service Director, Finance. Tel: 01484
221000. Sarah Hill, Finance Manager Tel: 01484 221000

9: Introduction of a Civil Penalty Policy for Housing Act 95 - 76
offences

A report to Cabinet to outline a policy to allow the council to
implement the new powers on civil penalties introduced by the
Housing and Planning Act 2016.

Wards: All

Officer: Stephen Cale, Operations Manager (Quality Homes). Tel:
01484 221000

10: Written Questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members 77 -80
(Reference from Council)

To receive written questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members
that were not dealt with at the previous meeting of Council, held on
12 September 2018, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule
12(8).

Wards: N/A

Officer: Andrea Woodside, Principal Governance Officer. Julie
Muscroft — Service Director (Legal, Governance and
Commissioning). Tel: 01484 221000




Agenda Item 2:

Contact Officer: Helen Kilroy

KIRKLEES COUNCIL

CABINET

Wednesday 29th August 2018

Present: Councillor Shabir Pandor (Chair)

Councillor Musarrat Khan
Councillor Naheed Mather
Councillor Peter McBride
Councillor Cathy Scott
Councillor Graham Turner

Apologies: Councillor David Sheard

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

Councillor Masood Ahmed
Councillor Erin Hill (Currently on Maternity Leave)
Councillor Viv Kendrick

Membership of the Committee
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Kendrick, Sheard,
Ahmed and Hill.

Interests
No interests were declared.

Admission of the Public
It was noted that there were no items for consideration in private session.

Deputations/Petitions
No deputations or petitions were received.

Public Question Time
No questions were asked.

Member Question Time
No questions were asked.

Proposed Spending Plan for Additional Investment in Social Care in 2018-19
Cabinet received a report which sought approval for the utilisation of additional
social care funding during 2018-2019. The report advised that the Council would
receive funding from the Adult Social Care Grant and the Leeds Business Rates
Pool, totalling £2.762m. The proposed spending, which was set out at Appendix 1 to
the considered report, focussed upon the priority areas of; (i) new technology and
equipment (to enable individuals to remain as independent as possible) (ii) staffing
capacity (to balance day to day activity and service transformation) (iii) supporting
and developing a more sustainable care market (iv) increasing specialist
accommodation capacity (v) managing demand through community based activity

1

Page 1



61

62

Cabinet - 29 August 2018

and (vi) implementing new care management systems to support the new model of
care and integration with local partners.

The report advised that the budgetary allocation for each project would be from the
2018-2019 funding, but in some cases would be profiled over a period of two years.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to:-
(1) The proposed projects in the spending plan attached to the report;

(2) Capitalisation of funding required for those projects that require capital
expenditure; and

(3) The delegation of the approval of any changes required between the project
allocations and the projects themselves to the Strategic Director for Adults and
Health in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Adults and Independence.

Catering Service Capital Plan - Proposed allocation of funding for the
Compliance Essential Works 5 year and 18/19 - 20/21 2 year baseline
programmes

Cabinet gave consideration to a report which identified potential gas ventilation
works and investment schemes, to be funded from the Catering Service Capital
Baseline section of the Capital Plan, as approved by Council on 11 July 2018.
Cabinet were asked to approve the 5 year £1m budget in order to bring school
kitchen gas installations up to current compliance standards. The report also set out
proposals for the annual baseline allocation for the next two year period in addition
to the gas compliance programme.

Cabinet noted that KNH property services maintained approximately 136
commercial gas catering installations and that in 2016 it had been highlighted that
85 school kitchens required upgrade works or refurbishment in order to meet current
gas health and safety legislation.

RESOLVED - That approval be given to:-

(1) The proposed programmes of works outlined in the report and Appendix A, as
per the capital allocation approved at Council on 14 February 2018, including the 5
year £1m budget to bring school kitchen gas installations up to current compliance
standards as well as the 2 year investment programme; and

(2) The delegated powers, as outlined in paragraphs 2.11 to 2.13 of the report, to
manage both of the programmes.

Kirklees Housing Strategy 2018 - 2023

Cabinet received the draft Housing Strategy 2018-2023 prior to its submission to
Council on 12 September 2018. The report advised that the strategy, which had
been shaped by the input of a range of stakeholders, set out the Council’s key
issues, challenges and ambitions for housing and housing services in Kirklees over
the next five years, and supported the Council’s outcomes. An action plan, which
formed part of the Housing Strategy was included within the considered document,
set out priority actions and identified the outcomes to be achieved. Cabinet were

Page 2



63

Cabinet - 29 August 2018

advised that progress made would be monitored and measured through the action
plan, which would be reviewed annually.

Cabinet were asked to endorse the Strategy and agree that it be submitted to
Council with a recommendation of approval.

RESOLVED - Cabinet noted and approved the draft Housing Strategy and referred
to Council for discussion and approval on 12 September 2018.

Housing Delivery Plan
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 36(1), Cabinet received a
representation from Councillor Burke).

Cabinet received a report which set out the approach for delivering the growth
element of the housing strategy and delivering 1000 homes on land currently owned
by the Council. It advised that the delivery plan had been prepared as part of the
evidence base for the Kirklees Housing Strategy and that its purpose was to guide
future investment decisions by recognising market conditions and providing the
mechanisms to prioritise activities in support of identified intervention themes.
Cabinet noted the detail of the report which set out the proposal and how it would be
progressed, including information on the changing pattern of housing demand and
maximising the use of council owned land.

The report advised that, subject to approval, the next stage of the process would
include appraising sites and commissioning site surveys. A full list of sites was
attached at Appendix 2 of the considered report.

RESOLVED -

(1) That approval be given to the proposal for a programme of housing land
disposals and development to enable the delivery of the council’s strategic ambition
for more affordable housing, specialist accommodation, Right to Buy receipts
programme (as described in paragraphs 3.33- 3.38 of the report) and for
mainstream mixed tenure housing;

(2) Cabinet noted that the Council was at an early stage of site analysis and so a
degree of flexibility would be needed as more became known about site feasibility
and constraints and the finalising of the local plan;

(3) That approval be given to work with an identified specialist partner as set out in
paragraphs 3.39 — 3.43 of the report, to deliver new provision for people with very
complex and challenging behaviours currently living in hospital,

(4) That approval be given to work with an identified partner to develop supported
housing for adults with Learning Disabilities as set out in paragraphs 3.44-3.46 of
the report, currently living in the Mencap scheme at Castle House;

(5) That approval be given to run a design competition as set out in paragraphs
3.77-3.80 of the report, on an appropriate site in the ownership of the Council and
the Strategic Director, Economy and Infrastructure be given delegated authority to
identify the most appropriate site and the parameters of the competition;

3
Page 3



64

Cabinet - 29 August 2018

(6) The Strategic Director, Economy and Infrastructure, in consultation with Portfolio
Holder for Adults and Independence, be given delegated authority to determine the
blended packages, the selection of partners and negotiate and agree the terms of
the disposal (as described in paragraphs 3.15- 3.32 and 3.47 to 3.80 of the report)
subject to: detailed due diligence and business case viability; and appropriate
governance arrangements to ensure oversight of the programme and the individual
projects within it; and

(7) That the Cabinet receive periodic updates to report on the progress and
performance of the Land Disposal and Development Programme.

Small Affordable Housing Sites

Cabinet gave consideration to a report which sought approval for the disposal of a
portfolio of council owned sites within the ‘small affordable housing sites’
programme to a registered provider for the provision of affordable housing. The
report advised that the programme was designed to maximise affordable housing
delivery and had the potential to deliver approximately 160 new homes. Subject to
approval, it was noted that the proposal would be progressed to a competitive
exercise through YORtender to receive and evaluate potential partners’ expression
of interest submissions. The sites proposed for the programme were listed at
Appendix 1 to the considered report and outline development timescales were set
out at Appendix 2.

Cabinet were advised that, by using this approach, the Council could benefit from
the affordable housing development sector’s capacity and resources in order to
maximise investment in affordable housing delivery. The report advised that the
affordable housing sought would be for social or affordable rent, or intermediate
housing, such as shared ownership.

RESOLVED -
(1) That approval be given to the disposal of the portfolio of sites in Appendix 1 to a
Registered Provider through competitive exercise, as described in the report;

(2) That the issue of the statutory notice to advertise the disposal of those sites that
constitute open space be endorsed;

(3) That authority be delegated to the Service Director for Legal, Governance and
Commissioning Support and the Strategic Director for Economy and Infrastructure,
to negotiate and agree terms and complete the sale of sites once planning
permissions have been obtained, unless further authority was required in respect of
the disposal of any site where objections were received following the publication of
the statutory notices advertising the disposal of the particular site; and

(4) That authority be delegated to the Service Director for Legal, Governance and
Commissioning Support to enter into and execute any agreement and any other
ancillary documents necessary to enable the sale and transfer of the sites in the
Small Affordable Housing Sites portfolio as described in Appendix 1 to the report.

(5) That officers be requested to explore different types of tenure, supported living
and different types of grant funding available.

4

Page 4



Agenda Item 3:

............................................ pareq e e
[N/A] ¢uolresspisuod
lapun sI1Salajul ue aAey
nNoA yoiym ul wall ayl ajiym (@ EETENT
Bunsaw ayl woiy Meipylim 18410, ue 10 1SaJalul
1SaJalul 01 noA alinbai 1sala1ul Arelunosad ajgeso|osip 1SaJa1ul

InoA jo uondiosap Jjaug

ay) Jo ainjeu ayl saoqg

e 0B9) 1salaiul Jo adA

ue aAey noA yaiym ui way|

10]|19UN0D JO aWeN

14 SONILIIN FILLINWOD/LINIGVI/TTONNOD

S1S344d41NI 40 NOILVdV103d

1IONNOD S THHINA

Page 5



"SSe|9 1ey Jo [euded aleys
PanssI [e10] 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo SPasdxa 1Salalul [elonauag e sey ‘1auned [IA19 InoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym
Ul SSe[d auo Aue Jo saleys ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10] 8y} ‘SSe|9 auo ueyl aiow Jo SI Apoq ey jo [ended ateys ayi Hi
1o ‘Apoq
Teys Jo [ended areys panssi [e101 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo 10 000‘GZF SPaaIxXa SaNliNdas ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10} ay)
- Jayue (q)
pue ‘Aoyine 1o |1ounod JNoA Jo Balse ay) ul pue| Jo ssauisng jo ade(d e sey (ebpajmouy JInoA 01) Apoq eyl (e)
- a19ym Apoq e Jo sanundas ul sey Jauned [IA19 IN0OA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym 1salaiul [eiolauaq Auy

"1SaJaul [elolauaq e sey ‘Jauned |IAID
INoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym uil Apog e SI Jueual ayl pue AlLioyine Jo [1I9unod INoA si piojpue| ayl - (ebpajmouy] INoA 01) alaym Aoueual Auy

*19buo| 1o yiuow e 10j Auoyine
10 [19UN02 INOA Jo BaJe ayl ul pue] Adn220 01 spjoy ‘Jauried [IA19 IN0A 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym (s1ayio yum Apuiol 1o suofe) aoual| Auy

*Allloyine 1o |1ouno9 INOA JO Bale ayl UuIylM SI Ydiym pue aAey ‘laurred |IAID INOA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym pue| ul 1salaul [eidlauaq Auy
‘pabreydsip AN usag 1ou sey Yyaiym e
pue {palndaxa aQ 0] aJe SHIOM 1o papinoid ag 0] aJe S3JIAISS 10 SPO0B Yaiym Japun e

- Alloyine 1o |19unod INoA pue (1salalul [elolBuag e

sey ‘Jaunred [IAID IN0A 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym ul Apoq e 1o) Jauued [IAID INoA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘nOA usamiaq apew SI YdIym 19euod Auy

'sasuadxa UoI1199]3 INOA Splemo] 10 ‘lagquiaw e se sannp 1no BuiAied ul noA Agq pasinoul sasuadxa Aue Jo 10adsal
ul pouad 1ueasjal ayl uiyum papiaoid o apew (Alioyine 1o |1IDunod JNOA Wl ueyl JaYylo) ujauaq eidueul) 1ayio Aue Jo uoisinoid 1o JuswAed Auy

‘'sayeuapun ‘suired |IAI9 10 asnods InoA 1o ‘noA yoiym ‘ureb 1o 11joad 10) UO palied uoRIOoA 10 uoissajold ‘apen ‘@210 QuawAiojdwa Auy

“Jaunred [IAID INOA a1am AUl JI Se U0 ‘9JIm J0 pueqsny se Bulall are noA woym yum uosiad Aue sapnjoul Jaunred [IAID 10 asnhods
0] 92uaJajal Auy "SajnJ [euoneU Mau ay] Japun s1salalul Aeiundad ajqesojasip 1noA are Aay) ‘s1salaiul Areiundad Buimol|o) ayi Jo Aue aney noA |

s1saJa1u| Alelunoad a|qeso|asig

S310N

Page 6



Agenda Item 8:
G Kirklees

COUNCIL
Name of meeting: Cabinet
Date: 2 October 2018
Title of report: Council budget strategy update report 2019-22

Purpose of the report

To determine the Cabinet’s approach to the annual update of the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP). This is reported to full Council each year, and sets a framework for
the development of draft spending plans for future years by officers and Cabinet.

Key decision —is it likely to result in Yes
spending or saving £250k or more, or to
have a significant effect on two or more
electoral wards?

Key decision - is it in the Council’s Key decision - Yes
Forward Plan (key decisions and
private reports?

The Decision - Is it eligible for “call in” | No
by Scrutiny?

Date signed off by Strategic Director & | Jacqui Gedman, 24 September

name 2018

Is it also signed off by the Service

Director for Finance Eamonn Croston, 24 September
2018

Is it also signed off by the Service

Director — Legal, Governance & Julie Muscroft, 24 September

Commissioning ? 2018

Cabinet member portfolio - Corporate Clir Graham Turner

Electoral wards affected: All

Ward Councillors consulted: All
Public or private: Public

RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING

Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, which applies to members where —

(a) they are present at a meeting of the Council, the Cabinet or a Committee and at the

time of the meeting an amount of council tax is payable by them and has remained
unpaid for at least two months, and

1
Page 7



(b) any budget or council tax calculation, or recommendation or decision which might
affect the making of any such calculation, is the subject of consideration at the
meeting.

In these circumstances, any such members shall at the meeting and as soon as
practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies to them
and shall not vote on any question concerning the matter in (b) above. It should be
noted that such members are not debarred from speaking on these matters.

Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, unless any
such members can prove they did not know that Section 106 applied to them at the
time of the meeting or that the matter in question was the subject of consideration at
the meeting.

1. Summary

1.1 The Cabinet is required under Financial Procedure Rules to submit to Council a
provisional budget strategy update no later than October, each year. The provisional
budget strategy in this report provides a budget planning framework to consider a 3
year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2019-22, and a 5 year Capital Plan
for 2019-24.

1.2 The starting point for the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
is the existing revenue budget plans (2018-20) approved at budget Council on 14
February 2018, and updated 5 year capital plans (2018-23) approved by Council on
11 July 2018 as part of the 2017-18 financial outturn & rollover report.

The links to both these reports are included below:

Annual budget report 2018-20 (Agenda ltem 5)

2017-18 financial outturn & rollover report (Agenda ltem 8)

1.3  Existing budget plans have been reviewed, including a high level review of funding
and spend assumptions. Any resultant gap between funding and spend forecasts
will inform target spending controls for Strategic Directors to bring forward draft
budget proposals for member consideration in accordance with the corporate
budget timetable. At the same time, funding and spend assumptions will continue
to be reviewed through the remainder of the current budget round, and updated
spend control totals incorporated into finalised budget plans as appropriate.

1.4  The overarching context for the Council in determining its annual resource
allocations has been national government policy over successive Parliaments from
2010 onwards, resulting in significant reductions in Government funding to the
Council over the period. These have been in the region of £150m (equivalent to
about 60% locally; with average national funding reductions over the period nearer
50%).

1.5 At the same time, Councils, in particular those with statutory social services

responsibilities like Kirklees, have also faced significant and increasing service
pressures; in particular in Children’s and Adult Services, and these pressures are

2
Page 8



set to increase over future years. The Local Government Association has predicted
that the scale of the funding gap across English Councils will be about £7.8 billion
by 2025.

1.6  The Council is the 7th lowest funded Council in the country, as measured by the
Government’s own spending power benchmark calculation, expressed as spend
per head of the population (and second lowest of the 36 metropolitan authorities).

1.7  The combined impact of national funding reductions and service pressures on the
Council has resulted in a cumulative revenue savings requirement of £183m over
the 2010-218 period, including £54m in 2017-18 alone. Existing Council budget
plans for 2018-20, include planned savings of £16.2m in 2018-19 and a further
£13.2m in 2019-20.

1.8  The Council Corporate plan 2018-20 acknowledges the scale of financial challenges
to date, and the tough decisions that have had to be taken to balance the books
while protecting frontline services and our most vulnerable residents. It also
recognises that to support this approach, it has also required the development of a
different type of organisation with new and innovative ways of doing things,
changing the way that we work with communities, keeping vulnerable people safe
and in control of their own lives, and focusing on the things that only the Council
can do.

1.9 The Corporate Plan also makes reference to Councillors’ changing roles, and that
in representing and serving the people and places of Kirklees, councillors’ roles are
growing — they are community leaders and at the heart of democratically elected
local government.

The link to the Council’s Corporate Plan is shown below :

2018-20 Council Corporate Plan (Agenda Iltem 9)

1.10 The Corporate Plan sets out a vision ; “a district which combines a strong,
sustainable economy with a great quality of life — leading to thriving communities,
growing businesses, high prosperity and low inequality where people enjoy better
health throughout their lives.”

1.11 To deliver this vision, the intention is to move into the next phase of developing the
Council to be one that focuses on achieving outcomes by working with people rather
than doing to them, working with partners, and recognising the importance of local
identity and how needs differ in different places. Existing budget plans for 2018-20,
whilst acknowledging the continuing financial challenges facing the Council, also
included significant new investment; in particular in children services, regeneration
activity, transformation capability and corporate capacity to support this approach.

1.12 The updated spend assumptions in this report continue the approach set out in
existing budget plans, in terms of acknowledging the further re-shaping of spending
plans and targeted investment aligned to the Councils ambitions and plans.

1.13 This report, in setting out current assumptions underpinning the updated MTFP,
includes acknowledgement of potentially significant unbudgeted risks. These
include further Social Care pressures, and current lack of national funding certainty
from Government post-2020.

3
Page 9



1.14 The updated general fund budget forecasts are summarised at Table 1 below,
including the current 2018-19 budget ;

Table 1 — Summary Baseline General fund budget forecasts 2019-22

Updated Baseline forecasts 18-19 | 19-20 | 20-21 | 21-22

£m £m £m £m
Total Funding Available (291.2) | (288.6) | (316.0) | (321.4)
Spending Plans 3074 | 3106 | 341.8| 346.9
Existing Planned Savings (reviewed) | (16.2) | (26.6) | (29.7) | (31.4)
New Service Pressures 9.4 17.7 24.6
New Service Investment 2.2 2.2 2.2
Net spending plans 291.2 | 295.6| 332.0| 3423
Budget Gap - 7.0 16.0 20.9

1.15 Updated baseline budget forecasts indicate that existing 2019-20 budget savings
are still deliverable, but the timing of delivery of some of these has been re-profiled
into later years. New service pressures largely reflects volume pressures, net of any
service specific external funding allocations; mainly in Children & Families;
educational High Needs pressures, and Adults demand led pressures.

1.16 This report also sets out a number of proposed investments, acknowledging that
existing plans will continue to develop and re-shape to better align with the Council’s
ambitions set out in the 2018-20 Corporate Plan.

1.17 The net effect of the changes set out at Table 1 above indicate a budget gap across
years i.e. further budget saving requirement, of £7m in 2019-20, £9m in 2020-21
(cumulative £16m) and £5m in 2021-22 (cumulative £21m) to deliver a balanced
budget. These further savings requirements are in addition to existing planned
savings (reviewed).

1.18 This report also acknowledges that in light of current national funding uncertainty
beyond 2020, updated budget forecasts in later years are more susceptible to
significant variations. While the updated baseline budget forecasts are considered
reasonable and prudent at this stage, the inclusion of sensitivity analysis in this
report reflects true extent of budget forecast sensitivities over later years; more so
given the uncertain national funding context which Councils are expected to deliver
accurate, robust and ‘balanced’ multi-year budget plans and financial strategies.

1.19 The funding uncertainty is also reflected in the approach to general fund revenue
reserves set out in this report, in particular with regard to the requirement to maintain
existing £37m financial resilience reserves at their current level, as a minimum, over
the medium term.

1.20 The MTFP update also re-affirms the Council’s current flexible capital receipts
strategy framework in line with Government guidance which now extends the
flexibility to 2021-22. This allows the Council to consider a range of approaches to
capitalise qualifying revenue expenditure, funded through in-year generated capital
receipts.

4
Page 10



1.21 HRA budget plans support the delivery of a high quality landlord service to 23,000
Council tenancies alongside supporting the Council’s strategic HRA capital
investment ambitions, within a self-financed 30 year HRA business plan. The
Council works closely with Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing (KNH), its partner arms
length management organisation, to regularly review and update the HRA business
plan.

1.22 Updated HRA budget forecasts assume the delivery of savings in view within
existing budget plans 2018-20 as the starting point. The recently released Social
Housing green paper includes a number of proposals which are reflected in updated
budget forecasts, including proposed social housing rent uplifts at Consumer Price
Index plus 1% over the 2020-25 period.

1.23 There is also acknowledgement that Government is proposing to drop proposals for
a high value levy charge, which was intended to be an annual charge to HRA’s, to
compensate registered providers for loss of housing stock from the proposed
introduction of right to buy in the registered provider sector. This will significantly
improve the longer term financial sustainability of the self-financed HRA business
plan.

1.24 The updated MTFP in respect of the Council’s overall capital investment plans is
summarised at Table 2 below :

Table 2 — Updated Capital Plan Summary 2018-24

18-19 | 19-20 | 20-21 | 21-22 | 2223 | 23-24
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Strategic Priorities 58.3| 40.3| 10.9 1.5 05| 1115
Baseline 36.7| 30.7| 256| 25.3 253 | 143.6
Risks & Pressures 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 5.0
Total General Fund 96.0| 720| 37.5| 27.8 26.8| 260.1
HRA strategic priorities | 11.0 7.6 6.0 6.0 6.0 36.6
HRA baseline 16.1 15.8| 16.7| 16.4 14.6 79.6
Total HRA 271 | 234 | 227 | 224 20.6 | 116.2
All Capital 123.1| 954 | 60.2| 50.2 474 | 376.3

1.25 The above plans are rolled forward from the existing 5 year capital plan (2018-23),
approved at Council on 11 July 2018, as part of the 2017-18 financial outturn &
rollover report, plus a new year 5. Existing plans include significant strategic priority
investment over the period in regeneration activity, housing growth and
development, and a new leisure facility for North Kirklees. The capital plan update
presented here also includes some further capital changes at this stage.

1.26 These plans will be reviewed further through the remainder of the current budget
round, including a more maijor officer re-work of the existing plan, consideration of
emerging new investment requirements, and capital resource affordability.

1.27 Funding and spend forecast assumptions presented in this report will continue to

be reviewed and any further changes will be considered for incorporation into the
finalised annual budget report for Cabinet and Council approval in February 2019.

5
Page 11



2.1

2.2

2.2.1

222

2.3

2.3.1

23.2

2.3.3

2.4

2.41

Information required to take a decision

This report includes a range of supporting information set out in the following
appendices:

Appendices

Summary general fund funding and spend forecasts 2019-22
General Fund Reserves

Summary Housing Revenue Account (including reserves) 2019-22
Summary Updated Capital Investment Plan 2018-24

Council flexible use of capital receipts strategy

Corporate Risk Register

Corporate Budget Timetable

Sensitivity analysis key assumptions

I OmMmoo >

General Fund

Appendix A represents a high level re-fresh of funding and spend forecasts over
the 2019-22 period, informed by a range of current national, regional and local
intelligence.

The following sections of this report set out in more detail the underpinning
assumptions informing the updated forecasts.

FUNDING ASSUMPTIONS

National Funding Outlook

The 2019-20 Local Government Finance Settlement technical consultation ran from
24 July to 18 September 2018. It set out Government’s intention to confirm year 4
of the multi-year settlement that 97% of all Councils (including Kirklees) previously
signed-up to, to provide ‘certainty’ over the 4 years.

The technical consultation also confirmed that Government is working towards
significant reform in the local government finance system from 2020-21, including a
more robust and transparent distribution methodology to set baseline funding levels,
and resetting business rates baselines.

At this stage, it is not clear what the likely national funding position will be for the
local government sector, or individual Councils from 2020-21 onwards. In light of
this continued uncertainty, updated Council baseline funding forecasts assume a
prudent position that national funding reductions will continue from 2020-21;
equivalent to £3.2m further funding reduction each year from 2020-21 onwards
against the Council’s baseline funding allocation for that year, which Government
intends to ‘re-set’.

75% Business Rates Retention Scheme implementation from 2020-21

Government’s original intention was to implement a 100% scheme nationally from
2020-21 onwards, to be enacted through a Finance Bill. However, following the
General Election on 8 June 2017, the Bill was not progressed. Government however
remains committed to promoting greater financial self-sufficiency in Local

6
Page 12



Government, and is instead intending to implement a 75% national scheme from
2020-21, which it can do within existing legislation.

24.2 1t is intended to be ‘fiscally neutral’ at a national level, which means that the
‘technical implementation’ in itself would not leave any individual Council any better
or worse-off. To compensate for the additional business rates income to be retained
locally, it is anticipated that this will also involve a transfer of current Government
funding responsibilities for Public Health at the same time.

2.4.3 This means that Council spending plans will increase by about £25m from 2020-21
onwards, because the Public Health specific grant contribution from Government
will cease at this point. There will instead be a corresponding increase in business
rates income retained locally, to compensate; ‘net nil’ overall budget impact. The
updated budget forecasts set out at Appendix A reflect this adjustment. At this
stage, it is not known if current Public Health specific grant conditions setting out
eligible spend against the grant, and monitored by Public Health England, will
continue in some guise, from 2020-21 onwards.

2.5 Leeds City Region & North Yorkshire Joint Business Rates Pilot bid 2019-20

2.5.1 Leeds City Region (LCR), along with 10 other Business Rates Pools, successfully
bid to be a 100% business rates pilot for 2018-19 only, as part of a new round of
bids offered to Councils by Government. The offer was originally set out as part of
the 2017-18 Financial Settlement. Any potential gains were not explicitly
incorporated into the Council’s 2018-19 budget plans at the time. This was due to
timing issues with the availability of the most up to date financial modelling
projections for Pool members, based on business rates 2018-19 estimates formally
submitted to Government at the end of January 2018.

2.5.2 However, anticipated minimum unbudgeted “one-off’ gains of £1.6m were
considered at Budget Council on 14 February 2018 and subsequently incorporated
into a Cabinet approved report on 21 August 2018, alongside a late Government
announcement of a specific Adult Social Care Grant for 2018-19 of £1.2m;
combined funding of £2.8m to support a Social Care transformation and change
programme over the 2018-20 period.

2.5.3 A Government business rates pool prospectus was released on 24 July 2018
inviting Councils to bid for a new round of 75% business rates pilots for 2019-20
only. The deadline for bid submissions was 25 September, and successful bids will
be announced as part of the 2019-20 Provisional Financial Settlement sometime in
December 2018.

2.5.4 Some existing pilots will automatically roll forward into 2019-20. These include the
pre-existing 2017-18 devolution deal pilots, and Government is also in separate
discussion with the London Boroughs about rolling forward their 2018-19 Pilot into
2019-20. All other current 2018-19 Pilots are effectively on an equal footing with
other Councils to submit new bids for 2019-20. Government has also indicated that
the 2019-20 Pilot programme is likely to be smaller than the 2018-19 programme.

2.5.5 In light of the anticipated smaller Pilot programme for 2019-20, and following

regional discussions among Council Leaders and Chief Executives, there has been
consideration of a Joint bid between Leeds City Region & North Yorkshire County

7
Page 13



Council Pools. Government’s prospectus criteria for 2019-20 bids includes testing
new ways of working with different tier splits. The combined bid meets this test.

2.5.6 Pilot bids for 2019-20 would need to be submitted by the deadline date of 25
September 2018; signed off by the respective bidding member authority s151
Officers, following agreement from all participating member authority Leaders and
Chief Executives. Government has not included a ‘no detriment clause’ for 2019-20
bids, compared to 2018-19. The original purpose of the no detriment clause was to
ensure that Pool members were not any worse off by being part of a pilot. Financial
modelling underpinning the 2019-20 joint bid has been co-ordinated by Leeds
Council, who are the host administrating body for the current LCR Business Rates
Pool. The non-inclusion of a Government no detriment clause is considered low risk
for the 2019-20 Pilot bid submission.

2.5.7 The financial model underpinning a joint Leeds City Region/North Yorkshire 75%
business rates retention Pilot submission, estimates a potential overall gain to the
combined Pool in the region of £25m.The bid sets out proposals for distributing this;
split between local and regional economic growth initiatives and individual
contributions to member authorities. It also includes arrangements for governance
of the 2019-20 Pool, using an approach similar to the existing 2018-19 LCR Pooled
arrangement, through a Joint Committee, but with an expanded membership to
ensure all member authorities in the expanded Pool were properly represented.

2.5.8 The deadline for publication of this report as part of the 2 October Cabinet papers,
is 24 September; one day ahead of the 25 September deadline for 2019-20 Pilot
applications. At this stage, the budget forecasts in this report assume that a finalised
and ultimately successful joint bid will be submitted as described above, with a
potential one-off gain to Kirklees of about £2m in 2019-20, based on current
financial model estimates. Should any bid not be successful, it is assumed that the
pre-existing 50% business rates LCR Pool, would continue as is, for 2019-20.

2.6 Business Rates Appeals

2.6.1 The Council has a prudent £11.5m bad debt provision for appeals valuations
outstanding; largely relating to the 2010 list, some still outstanding from the 2005
list, and anticipated appeals from the 2015 list. A new appeals system was
implemented by Government from April 2017, intended to reduce the overall volume
of new appeals against the most current 2015 rating list. Current Valuation Office
data suggests that new appeals from the 2015 ratings list are significantly lower in
volume than previous rating list appeals. A prudent officer assessment suggests
that the bad debts appeal provision requirement going forward can be revised, and
in the region of £0.8m re-paid to the general fund in 2019-20 from the Collection
Fund, as a result of this anticipated adjustment.

2.6.2 In-year collection fund monitoring for 2018-19 indicates that business rate
projections are broadly on line with budget. In light of the current economic climate,
no net growth assumptions have been built into future year business rates income
projections, at least at this stage. This is also consistent with previous budget round
assumptions on net business rates growth

2.7 Council Tax Referendum Principles 2019-20

8
Page 14



2.7.1 The 2019-20 Local Government Finance Settlement technical consultation sets out
a council tax referendum limit for Councils of up to 3% in 2019-20, similar to the
referendum limit applied in 2018-19.

2.7.2 ltis at the discretion of the Council to decide whether or not to uplift Council Tax in
2019-20, up to 3%, without triggering a referendum. The current officer assumption
is that Council Tax will be uplifted by 2.99%, and this is incorporated into updated
funding forecasts; equivalent to £5.2m additional funding. Assumed Council tax
increases for the following 2 years are 1.99% per annum; equivalent to £3.6m
additional funding each year.

2.7.3 At Band A level, 2.99% uplift in 2019-20 is equivalent to an annual uplift of £29.21;
from £977.18 in 2018-19 to £1,006.39 in 2019-20 (before fire, police and parish
council precepts). Government has confirmed that the referendum principles will not
apply to Parish Councils in 2019-20, but will continue to keep this area under active
review.

2.7.4 There were also Council tax uplifts of 3% in 2017-18 and a further 3% 2018-19 in
respect of the Adult Social Care precept, which Government made available to
Councils; hypothecated fully to adult social care spend in line with Government
conditions. Councils were able to apply an adult social care precept uplift of no more
than 6% over the 2017-20 period. Kirklees applied 3% uplifts in 2017-18 and 2018-
19, and are now at the 6% limit. The technical consultation states that proposals for
the precept remain as per existing Government guidance set out above.

2.7.5 The technical consultation does however note that “following consideration of
responses, the Government intends to provide an update on its proposals for
council tax referendum principles including the Adults Social Care precept,
alongside the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement later in the year.”

2.7.6 The local Council Tax Reduction scheme is means tested and works so that those
not “protected” are required to pay at least 20% of their full council tax liability. The
local scheme only applies to those of working age, the national pension age scheme
means there is no such minimum payment and many pensioners are assessed as
having nothing to pay. Future year budget forecasts assume that this will continue
as is.

2.7.7 Government has also made provision to allow Councils local discretion to implement
a 100% empty property premium charge after 12 months, increasing to 200% after
24 months and 300% after 36 months. There is currently a 50% premium charged
on properties still empty after 24 months. At the time of writing no date has been
set in parliament for the Bill to receive Royal Assent but it is expected that the Bill
will become law and that there will be sufficient time for Council to make a decision
as to whether to adopt those premiums.

2.7.8 Officers will bring forward a further report to Cabinet and Council later this year with
a view to locally implement this revised national policy. A current prudent
assumption of £360k additional Council Tax income gain from 2019-20 is already
factored into existing budget forecasts. The modelled impact of potential future year
premium gains is currently under review.

2.7.9 Council tax funding projections assume Council Tax Base growth over the next 3
years, at an average increase (Band D equivalent) of 700 properties in 2019-20,

9
Page 15



700 properties in 2020-21, and a further 700 properties in 2021-22. This is a
continuation of growth assumptions set out in existing budget plans. Current in-year
revenue monitoring 2018-19 suggests forecast council tax income is broadly in line
with budget.

2.7.10 Current updated assumptions on business rates, council tax growth and any
associated service infrastructure pressures will continue to be reviewed through the
remainder of the current budget round, and any further revisions factored in as
appropriate. This includes consideration of the potential impact of the housing
strategy 2018-23, reported to Council on 12 September 2018. The link to this report
is shown below:

Housing strategy report 2018-23 (Iltem 9)

2.8 Un-ringfenced Grants

2.8.1 While these grants are separately identifiable, the Council can apply this
funding flexibly to meet overall Council spend priorities. Future year budget
forecasts largely reflect existing budget plan allocations for 2019-20.

2.8.2 Housing & Council Tax Administration Grant allocations are forecast to reduce year
on year by about £150k. This reflects the assumed pace of Universal Credit rollout
in the District over the next 3 years, and consequential impact on reduced grant
required due to reduced volumes of Housing Benefit directly administered by the
Council over the period. There is a further £150k technical reduction in 2019-20
which adjusts the baseline to match current allocations.

2.8.3 The current New Homes Bonus (NHB) assumption is £4m in 2019-20, in line with
Government indicative calculations for 2019-20, set out as part of the 2018-19 final
financial settlement. The 2019-20 forecast has similarly been applied over future
years. This is assumed to be a prudent forecast.

2.8.4 From 2017-18, Government introduced a national baseline for housing growth of
0.4% of Council tax base, below which NHB would not be paid. Government has
retained the option to make adjustments to the baseline percentage in 2019-20 and
future years, to reflect any significant additional housing growth and the requirement
to remain within national spending limits. Any changes and impacts will be detailed
at the time of the provisional 2019-20 financial settlement. It is also Government’s
intention for a more fundamental review of how to incentivise housing growth more
effectively which could significantly impact on NHB in its current form, from 2020-
21 onwards.

2.9 Adult Social Care Grant Funding

2.9.1 Demand led volume and cost pressures and demographic trends are having a
continuing and significant impact on already stretched Council budgets and this has
been well documented both nationally and at a local level over recent years.

2.9.2 These pressures have largely been contained over the 2016-20 period through a
combination of Adult Social Care precept uplifts and additional Better Care Funding
(BCF) allocations; albeit about half the ‘additional’ BCF has been funded from a
national top-slice of pre-existing Council resources (New Homes Bonus), re-

10
Page 16



directed to BCF. The cumulative impact of the above funding measures has been
to add £27.9m to Adults annual base budget in 2019-20 compared to 2015-16, such
has been the scale of increasing service pressures over the period.

2.9.3 There is however national recognition that beyond 2020, continuing and increasing
adult social care pressures will be beyond the means of existing Council budgets to
be able to contain over the longer term, and that a national funding solution is
required.

2.9.4 Government has indicated that its intended green paper on the future funding of
adult social care will be considered in autumn this year, alongside Government
proposals for £20 billion additional funding for the NHS over the 2020-25 period.

2.9.5 Existing budget plans include Government funding through the additional Better
Care Funding (BCF) allocation, which totals £12.4m in 2018-19, increasing to
£15.4m in 2019-20. This is Government funding directed at English Councils with
social care responsibilities. The funding is channelled through the Pooled Budget
arrangements that Councils with social care responsibilities have with their local
Clinical Commissioning Group Partners.

2.9.6 This funding has a number of national Government conditions attached to its spend,
including measures to increase the rates of hospital discharge and reduce bed
blocking, through more integrated local health and social care arrangements. While
Government has not confirmed that the current level of 2019-20 funding will
continue into future years, budget forecasts assume this to be the case.

2.9.7 A one-year Adult Social Care grant was announced late in the budget process by
Government, as part of the finalised financial settlement for 2018-19. The allocation
for Kirklees was £1.2m, subsequently earmarked to support a range of social care
transformation and change activity over a 2 year period.

2.9.8 Government has made no formal announcement about continuing this grant into
future years, but in light of continuing and significant pressures on Adult Social care
budgets, updated budget forecasts assume that Government will maintain the
existing £1.2m grant allocation in 2019-20 and future years.

2.9.9 Forthe reasons set outin paragraph 2.9.4 above, updated budget forecasts assume
that from 2020-21 onwards, Government will commit to additional funding to support
Councils with social care responsibilities. At this stage, any such ‘additional’ funding
is assumed for presentational purposes to be by way of un-ringfenced grant, and
mirrors what an equivalent 2% annual adult social care precept uplift would equate
to from 20-21 onwards.

2.9.10 This equates to about £3.6m additional funding each year. This is considered a
reasonable and prudent baseline assumption in the absence of any more detailed
proposals from Government, which will not take shape at least before the 2019
Spending Review.

210 Schools Funding
2.10.1 Government introduced a revised National Funding Formula (NFF) for schools from

April 2018. The NFF determines the amount of core revenue funding that goes
directly to mainstream schools.

11
Page 17



2.10.2 However, because the current funding arrangements for each local authority are
the result of a complex combination of historical national and local funding
decisions, the move to a National Funding Formula has produced significantly
different outcomes for local schools and academies.

2.10.3 The NFF for Kirklees maintained schools is less generous than the pre-existing
system but the NFF contains protections to mitigate most of the reductions delivered
by the pure application of the new formula. This includes a Government minimum
uplift of 0.5% in 2018-19 and also 2019-20 for the funding allocation per pupil within
the overall Schools Block calculation.

2.10.4The Council’s indicative Schools Block funding in 2019-20 is £292m, the High Needs
block is £36m, the Early Years block £27m and the Central School Services block
£2.3m.

2.10.5The High Needs block under the new NFF acknowledges the level of previous
under-funding, and Government intention is to increase the annual allocation by
£7m compared to the 2017-18 baseline. Due to transitional arrangements, this will
be phased over a 7 year period, at about £1m per annum. This phasing is reflected
in updated budget forecasts.

2.10.6 The NFF for schools funding was introduced in a 'soft' format across funding years
2018-19 and 2019-20. The NFF calculates the bottom-line Schools Block allocation
to local authorities with local discretion over its distribution then to be agreed
following consultation via the local Schools Forum, and a 'hard' format from funding
year 2020-21. Schools block funding allocations from this point are intended to be
calculated directly by the Education & Skills Funding Agency. The other three
funding blocks within the Dedicated Schools Grant (High Needs, Central School
Services and Early Years) would continue to be the responsibility of the Council to
manage and allocate as appropriate.

2.10.7 For 2019-20 there is some flexibility to move funds from the Schools Block to the
High Needs block, for example, to address financial pressure in the High Needs
account. Up to 0.5% of the total Schools Block can be moved with the agreement
of the Schools Forum; equivalent to £1.4m. If agreement was not reached, the
Council would need the approval of the Secretary of State.

2.10.8 Any proposed movements above 0.5%, even with Schools Forum consent, would
still require secretary of state approval.

2.10.9 The Council will keep under review the significant and growing high needs block
funding pressures through the remainder of the current budget round (see also
paragraph 2.12 further below), and will take a view on the potential flexibility as
described in the above paragraph, taking account as well the provisional schools
funding allocations for 2019-20 which will be released at the same time as the 2019-
20 provisional financial settlement announcement.

SPENDING PLAN ASSUMPTIONS

211 Current year financial performance — general fund revenue

12
Page 18



2.11.1 Current organisational and national intelligence informing the budget strategy
update takes account of the most current financial monitoring. Quarter 1 financial
monitoring, 2018-19, was presented to Cabinet 21 August 2018 (see report link
below):

Quarter 1, 2018-19 financial monitoring report (ltem 9)

211.2There is a forecast overspend of £4.4m against £292m revised budget at
Quarter 1 financial monitoring; equivalent to 1.5% variance against revised budget.
There is good progress towards the delivery of £16.2m planned savings
requirement in-year. Forecast savings are projected to be £14.0m; equivalent to
86% delivery. Elsewhere, there are forecast unbudgeted net pressures forecast at
£2.2m.

2.11.3 The following sections set out in more detail, updated baseline spend assumptions
across Strategic Director portfolios, highlighting as appropriate, key issues raised
through current financial monitoring intelligence.

Updated spend assumptions — Strategic Director Portfolios
212 Children & Families — Learning, Skills & Early Support

2.12.1 The 2017-18 financial outturn report to Council on 11 July 2018 highlighted an
underlying net service pressure on special educational needs activity, totalling
£4.2m.

2.12.2 This pressure has continued and increased through 2018-19, based on Quarter 1
financial monitoring projections. The forecast in-year pressure is £6.4m.This
includes a projected overspend of £3.7m in respect of placements of Kirklees
children in independent and other local authority specialist provisions.

2.12.3 The average annual number of active placements in independent specialist
provision has significantly increased over the last few years moving from an
average of 88 active placements in 2016-17 to a current average of 126 as at June
2018; an increase of 43%. An increase of similar proportions is also evident over
the same period in the annual average number of children placed in other local
authority specialist provision, moving from an average of 20 children in 2016-
17 to a current average of 28 children.

2.12.4 The balance of High Needs pressure is made up of £1.6m for support funding
payments for high needs students in the local further education sector and
£1.1m in respect of top-up funding to support rising numbers of increasingly
complex need children within the mainstream schools sector.

2.12.5 Updated budget forecasts at this stage reflect these current pressures in service,
and forecast a further increase of just over £1m, for 2019-20. As noted earlier at
paragraph 2.10.5, assumed Government High Needs Block Grant uplifts of £1m per
annum over the next 3 years will part mitigate against future service pressures. In
conjunction with the above, it is also anticipated at this stage that pressures can
also be part mitigated through a range of measures, including those described in
the following paragraphs.

13
Page 19



2.12.6 A Kirklees wide High Needs Strategic Review was reported to Cabinet on 20
February, 2018. The link to this report is shown below:

Summary of findings from the Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities
(SEND) High Needs Strategic Review (Iltem 14)

2.12.7 The Council is working with key education partners across the District on a
comprehensive action plan to deliver a more effective, whole systems approach
This also includes a current review of District sufficiency requirements going
forward; forthcoming proposals to be considered as part of emerging capital
investment requirements through the remainder of this budget round.

2.12.8 An officer review of service requirements has further identified a significant
investment requirement of £700k in the SENACT team, to support staffing, work
force development and strategic development to achieve the necessary
improvements set out above, and this requirement is included in updated spend
forecasts.

2.12.9 A funding gap of £420k has been identified due to a number of factors including
increased demand (increase of free nursery entitlement) and the increased
provision of Early Intervention processes (Portage support to parents). By providing
this funding, more resource can be dedicated to managing the needs of children as
early as possible which will hopefully prevent the needs becoming more complex
and potentially resulting in more expensive support packages in the future (for
example via Education Health and Care Plans, or for family support).

213 Children & Families — Child protection & safeguarding

2.13.1 Existing budget plans include £5.5m sustainable investment in Child Protection &
Family Supportin 2018-19. Service budgets have been fundamentally reviewed and
re-shaped to align with the Children Improvement Plan, which is based on a long
term Partnership with Leeds Council.

2.13.2 The Council is making good progress in the delivery of significant improvements in
outcomes of children, and meeting the recommendations set out in the original
inadequate rated OFSTED report in November 2016.

2.13.3 These improvements include measures to reduce the number of children placed
outside the District, with planned savings of just over £3m over the next 3 years.
These improvements are ongoing, and the planned savings associated with out of
area placements have been re-profiled across later years to reflect a more realistic
timescale of delivery.

2.13.4 Planned improvements also include ongoing investment in a restorative practice
team at £600k.This additional capacity is currently funded through a one-off
Government grant for 2018-19 only, but on the basis that Council commitment to
ongoing restorative practice investment is essential to the successful delivery of the
Improvement Plan. Also, following the recent implementation of a new caseload
management system within service, Liquid Logic, there is an identified ongoing
investment requirement to support and maintain the system, at £240k, also built into
updated spend forecasts.

14
Page 20



2.13.5 Updated budget plans also build in demand led price inflation across the range of
looked after children support provision.

2.14 Adults & Health

2.14.1 Existing budget plans include additional base budget resources of £9.7m in 2018-
19 for demand led volume pressures, over 65’s demographic pressures, and
provider cost pressures; the latter relating to social care external provider costs
impacted on by a 4.6% national living wage uplift in 2018-19. A further £3.2m is built
into existing 2019-20 budget plans, to meet volume and demographic pressures.

2.14.2 Updated budget forecasts include a further assumed 4.6% National Living Wage
uplift in 2019-20, with a corresponding impact on provider costs of about £4.3m.

2.14.3 At this stage, future year budget forecasts assume similar annual volume and cost
increases over the 2020-22 period. However, all the above assumptions will be
subject to detailed service review and challenge through the remainder of the
budget round; in particular with regard to more detailed and robust business
intelligence informing modelled service demand scenarios, and potential mitigating
service actions. These include the impact of significant ongoing organisational
investment in social service transformation and change, and the future shape,
direction and impact of social care and health integration locally.

2.15 Economy & Infrastructure

2.15.1 Existing budget plans include £10k base budget allocation activity per ward; £230k
in total, plus one-off resources totalling £706k for ward committed expenditure,
rolled forward through earmarked revenue reserves. In addition, Cabinet will
consider in due course, detailed proposals for the use of Council approved revenue
rollover resources of just over £1.5m for Public Realm works.

2.15.2 The above measures are supported by a District wide ‘ward squad’, which it is
intended to start to deploy from November 2018. Existing budget plans included
£250k base budget investment to support this initiative.

2.15.3 Updated spend forecasts include a commitment to double the annual base budget
allocation for ward based activity from £10k current to £20k per ward from 2019-20
onwards. The doubling of the allocation per ward has been resourced from existing
2018-20 budgeted resources set aside for for Place based activity, currently held
within the Office of Chief Executive’s Transformation Fund budget.

2.15.4 Elsewhere, there is acknowledgement of recurrent unfunded service pressures
relating to schools transport, of £1m; in particular impacted on by current
educational Special Educational Needs and/or Disability pressures. An additional
pressure factored into updated budget spend forecasts is the financial impact of the
loss of driver training police contract at £400k.

2.15.5A recent officer review of health and safety and fire safety organisational
compliance capacity requirements has identified an investment need of about
£310k.

2.15.6 The Council’'s ambitions for Regeneration, including significant investment in town
centre vibrancy, and plans for housing development and growth over the 2018-24

15
Page 21



period, will require technical and officer project capacity, and an additional
investment need of £300k has been identified. In addition, £4m has also been made
available within existing earmarked revenue reserves to address the likely scale of
other “one-off” costs required to support the scale of regeneration capital investment
over the 2018-24 period (see also, paragraph 2.18.5).

2.15.7 The Council’s current Waste Contract ends in 2022-23, and work is ongoing to
review options for 2023-24 onwards. It is anticipated that there will be an overall
increase in costs from current. This includes the current annual PFI grant
contribution of £3.2m which ends on 31 March 2023.

216 Corporate Services

2.16.1 Existing budget plans include £3m additional capital investment in the
Council’'s Digital transformation programme, in recognition of the scale of
transformation required. The Council’s IT service has planned savings of £1.2m in
2018-19, and there are further planned IT savings of £1.3m in 2019-20 included in
existing budget plans. The 2019-20 planned savings have now been deferred 12
months, to allow more time to review organisational IT requirements going forward.

2.16.2 Corporate capacity has been reviewed, in particular in light of more stringent
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) requirements, with an identified need
for additional investment of £200k per annum form 2019-20 onwards. Corporate
business intelligence capability has also been reviewed, with an additional revenue
investment identified at £130k per annum.

217 Central budgets

2.17.1 Contingency inflation assumptions have been updated to ensure pay provision
requirements for the 2018-20 national pay award are fully met. Also factored in are
assumed pay awards of 2% in both 2020-21 and 2021-22.

2.17.2 Price inflation is zero over existing budget plans. Strategic Director portfolios are
operating within cash limit budgets over this period. The only exceptions relate to
energy and waste contract inflation. Updated forecasts over the 2020-22 period
assume an annual price inflation allocation equivalent to 1%, and separate inflation
calculations as current, for energy and waste contract inflation.

2.17.3 Income inflation is assumed at 2% per annum, other than acknowledgement of
ongoing pressures on car parking and markets income, which will continue to have
zero inflation.

2.17.4 Contingency budget requirements have also been updated to accommodate annual
£300k PFI repayment costs relating to schools, for which an earmarked reserve had
previously been set aside (see also paragraph 2.18.10). A further £1m increase is
required from 2019-20 to reflect a prudent break-even position on the Council’s
insurance fund going forward. Current in-year forecasting indicates that a £1m
target surplus factored into existing budget plans was overly optimistic in light of
ongoing Council service and external insurance provider premia requirements.

2.17.5 The next 3 yearly (tri-ennial) actuarial review of employer contributions to the West

Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) will be undertaken in preparation for 2020-23
period. Updated spend forecasts assume a prudent 1% increase in employer

16
Page 22



contributions from current, to 17.1%, from 2020-21 onwards; equivalent to £1.6m
per annum.

2.17.6 Updated Treasury management budget forecasts assume a further 0.25% uplift in
bank of England base rate to 1.0%, in 2019-20. This can be contained within
existing budgets, due to slippage on borrowing within existing capital investment
plans.

2.17.7 In conjunction with the forthcoming review of current capital investment
requirements (see also paragraph 2.22),it is intended to further review borrowing
affordability over the 2018-24 period, and bring forward any revised borrowing
proposals for member consideration. This will also take into consideration, updated
CIPFA Prudential Borrowing Code and Government Treasury Management
guidance.

2.17.8 The financial outturn and rollover report 2017-18 included officer intent to review
current treasury management investment policy and consider options for future
investment opportunities that could make additional returns for the Council. It is
intended to bring forward early options for member consideration as part of the half-
yearly review of 2018-19 treasury management performance, for Cabinet and
Council consideration later this year.

2.17.9 Existing Treasury Management budgets also reflect changes to the Council’s
treasury management policy relating to minimum revenue provision (annual
revenue resources set aside for repayment of debt, also known as MRP),
implemented from 2017-18 onwards.

2.17.10 This reduces ongoing MRP requirements to an estimated £4m per annum over the
2017-27 period, compared to the £13m actual current base budget provision for
MRP; effectively ‘releasing’ £9m annual base budget, intended to support
organisational flexibility and financial resilience over the medium to longer term.

2.17.11 Current year financial monitoring has applied £5m of the MRP ‘flexibility’ to help
offset significant unfunded service pressures relating to Special Educational Needs
& Disabilities activity. Updated budget forecasts assume the continued application
of this £5m flexibility to continue to support High Needs pressures in 2019-20, but
reducing thereafter by £1m each year; with an equivalent Government uplift in
Dedicated Schools Grant funding, High Needs block to offset this.

2.17.12 The balance of £4m MRP flexibility not applied in 2019-20 remains in Treasury
Management base budget at this stage, available to support organisational flexibility
and financial resilience requirements going forward.

2.18 General Fund Revenue Reserves
2.18.1 A modelled forecast of general fund revenue reserves over the 2018-22 period is

shown graphically below. These reserves are set out in more detail at Appendix B
together with a summary explanation of each reserve held.

17
Page 23



Estimated Usable Reserves (Excluding Schools) 2018-22

90,000
80,000
N Other
70,000 =
% Q \ Q Earmarked

B \ \ \ % Reserves
20,000 ﬁ & k & B Financial
Gl =

40,000 Resilence

Reserve

0 : : : O General

20,000 - : Balances

10,000

1st April 18 1st April 19 1st April 20 1st April 21 1st April 22

2.18.2 Existing earmarked reserves and general balances requirements have been
reviewed and the modelled reserves position reflects the following changes as set
out below. For context, Usable Reserves (excluding Schools) at 1 April 2018 at
£78.9m, equates to 27% of net annual revenue budget of £291.2m; equivalent to
14 weeks in-year spend. Useable Reserves are forecast to reduce to £64.8m by
year end 2021-22, which equates to 20% of net annual revenue budget of £321.4m;
equivalent to 10 weeks in-year spend.

2.18.3 General balances are effectively unallocated reserves set aside to support day to
day working capital requirements. While this has traditionally been set at a minimum
£5m requirement, actual general balances held has in recent years been above the
£5m minimum.

2.18.4 A review of Councils in the region and wider suggests that a minimum general
balances requirement of £10m is more appropriate for a Council with an annual net
revenue budget requirement of just under £300m. Current general balances have
therefore been adjusted to achieve the £10m minimum requirement going forward.

2.18.5 Existing multi-year capital plans include significant investment in a range of
regeneration activity, including town centre vibrancy and housing growth and
development intent over the 2018-24 period. This has also entailed a recent officer
review of ongoing organisational capacity requirements, and other resource
requirement to support development, planning and delivery. To support this
requirement, it is intended to create a specific regeneration reserve at £4m.

2.18.6 The Strategic Director Portfolio for Economy & Infrastructure includes a winter
maintenance base budget provision based on a ‘typical’ winter gritting requirement.
Given more recent year unpredictable severe weather events in the District, this is
acknowledged to present a degree of budget risk. To mitigate against this, it is
intended to establish a severe weather reserve, also at £4m.

18
Page 24



2.18.7 Current capital plans include intent for the Council to support third party
regeneration development through a revolving capital loan facility (Property
Investment Fund), upto a maximum £25m. The Council also has a number of
existing third party loans, the most significant being the Kirklees College loan, with
£19m currently outstanding.

2.18.8 A new local government accounting code requirement was introduced in 2018-19
which relates to a range of balance sheet categories, incorporating financial assets
and liabilities (International Financial Reporting Standard 9 - Financial Instruments).
This is intended to strengthen balance sheet transparency. This includes a
mandatory set aside or provision requirement against the potential risk of future
loan default.

2.18.9 To support the accounting code requirement, it is intended to set aside an initial
specific reserve for £3m. This will be further reviewed in line with emerging technical
code guidance and interpretation, including advice from Grant Thornton, our
external auditors, as appropriate, to ensure Council compliance with accounting
code requirements.

2.18.10 The above specific earmarked reserves requirements have been facilitated through
the release of other current earmarked reserves held. This includes the release of
the £3.3m PFI-Prepayment reserve, which has a prescribed annual drawdown
requirement of £300k. The annual drawdown requirement will instead be
incorporated into Central Budget base budget from 2019-20 onwards.

2.18.11 Existing workforce restructure and transformation reserves totalling £10m have also
been released. Spend commitments against these reserves will instead be reflected
as capitalised costs within updated capital plans, allowed for under the current
flexible capital receipts strategy. It is anticipated that there will be sufficient in-year
capital receipts in both current and future years to accommodate this approach.

2.18.12 The balance of existing reserves re-directed to accommodate the new reserves
requirements set out above, has been re-directed from the revenue Grants reserve
as they are no longer required; £703k in total.

2.18.13 As a result of the above measures, the financial resilience reserves held at the start
of 2018-19, at £37m, will be maintained at their current level.

2.18.14 Under Section 25 of the Local Government act (2003), in setting annual budgets
the statutory s151 officer is required to give positive assurance statements in
relation to the robustness of budget estimates and the adequacy of reserves and
balances. There is no prescriptive guidance on the latter. Most recent sectoral
guidance comes from a joint CIPFA/Local Authority Accounting Panel paper in
2014, which states :

1) when reviewing their medium term financial plans and preparing their annual
budgets, local authorities should consider the establishment and maintenance of
reserves;

i) authorities should make their own judgements on such matters taking into account
all the relevant local circumstances; and

19
Page 25



iil) in assessing the appropriate level of reserves, a well-managed authority will ensure
that the reserves are not only adequate but are also necessary. There is a broad
range within which authorities might reasonably operate depending on their
particular circumstances.

2.18.15 The updated reserves position set out in this section of the report takes into account
the above guidance.

2.18.16 This Council faces continuing and significant financial challenges and service
pressures over the medium term. The national funding landscape post-2020 is
uncertain, and there is potentially increased volatility in terms of impact from a range
of risks recorded on the Council’s updated corporate risk register (see Appendix F),
including the potential high level impacts from the United Kingdom’s withdrawal
from the European Union. There are also a number of well documented national
media reports regarding increasing numbers of Councils potentially at the brink of
financial crisis.

2.18.17 The extent of this concern has also extended to the sector’s professional accounting
body, CIPFA, who recently consulted Councils on proposals on a benchmark
measure of Councils relative financial resilience. This is alongside a proposed
financial management code of practice to guide officers and members in
understanding and considering all relevant factors in assessing Council financial
resilience, including local as well as national factors. CIPFA will update Councils
later in the year on emerging new guidance.

2.18.18 The Council has also set out its ambition to invest, transform and change. Financial
resilience reserves are a key element of the Council’s budget strategy in terms of
Council financial resilience to manage unbudgeted risks and pressures over the
2019-22 period.

2.18.19 The s151 officer recommends that the existing £37m financial resilience reserves
are maintained as a minimum at their current level, at least for the next 18 months,
pending further analysis and clarification of the broader national and local funding,
policy and economic landscape.

2.18.20 The following section includes some sensitivity analysis regarding updated baseline
budget forecasts included in this report. The range of sensitivities reflect marginal
changes to a number of key assumptions but show the extent of potential volatility
of medium term budget forecasts, in a climate of increased external funding and
economic uncertainty.

2.19 BUDGET FORECASTS - SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

2.19.1 Included at Appendix H are a range of potential sensitivities on baseline budget
forecast assumptions as set out in this report. While these sensitivities are
illustrative, and there can be different combinations, in broad terms they represent
relatively minor changes to a number of key baseline budget forecast assumptions,
and the cumulative impact of these over time.

2.19.2 The impact of these budget forecast sensitivities are summarised in the graph
below.

20
Page 26



Budgets Gaps associated with Different Funding and Cost Scenarios
50
45 43 = = MORE PESSIMISTIC
o7 FUNDING/COST
40 SCENARIO
35 Y BASELINE
FUNDING/COST
30 28 SCENARIO
”
£m 25 -7 71 —— + MORE OPTIMISTIC
¢ FUNDING/COST
20 e SCENARIO
P 16
15 s il BASELINE IF COUNCIL
13, TAX FROZEN 19-20
10 10 8 ONWARDS
T s ey d e IS S s 4 4 §
5 — =
0
19-20 2021 21-22
2.19.3 lllustratively here, the forecast budget gap by 2021-22 could be in the actual range
£6m to £43m, and to a large extent this reflects the extent of both Council funding
uncertainty post-2020, and the potential impact of the highlighted headline
corporate risks, compared to baseline budget forecast assumptions.
2.19.4 Also included in the sensitivity analysis for illustrative purposes is the cumulative
impact on current baseline budget gap assumptions over the 2019-22 period, if the
Council decided to maintain council tax at 2018-19 levels over the next 3 years. The
cumulative impact would be a further £13m budget pressure by 2021-22.
2.20 Flexible Capital Receipts Strategy
2.20.1 Current flexible capital receipts strategy guidance is set out by the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), and applies over the
2016-22 period. The web link to current Government guidance is shown below:
Final Guidance on flexible use of capital receipts
2.20.2 MHCLG guidelines state that the flexible use of capital receipts must be approved
by full Council annually. The Council’s current flexible capital receipts strategy is
incorporated into this report, at Appendix E.
2.20.3 The proposed strategy included at Appendix E incorporates the following qualifying

i)

‘capitalisable‘ revenue expenditure :

cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff or non-staff),
where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service transformation; and

21
Page 27




ii) driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how
the public interacts with constituent authorities where possible;

2.20.4 Appendix E sets out the Council’s flexible capital receipts strategy framework. To
support the Council’s revised earmarked reserves requirements, it is intended to
reflect the intended continued capitalisation of transformation and workforce
restructure costs within the updated capital plan.

2.21 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

2.21.1 The overarching context for the existing multi-year HRA budget plans rolled
forward into 2018-22 MTFP update is a sustainable, self-financed 30 year HRA
business plan ,which delivers the following key objectives :

i) annual servicing of HRA debt upto the £247m borrowing cap limit set by
Government,

i) capital improvements and maintenance of all Council housing stock to a
minimum decency standard ,

iii) delivery of high quality and cost effective housing management and repair
service, and

iv) inclusion of funding for a number of HRA strategic capital priorities and
scope to consider further investment opportunities

2.21.2 Updated HRA budget forecasts are summarised at Appendix C. They reflect the
final year impact of Government’s annual 1% social housing rent reduction, over
the 2016- 20 period, enacted through the Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016. The
recently released Government social housing green paper sets out proposals for
social housing rents to increase by Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus 1%, over the
2020-25 period. This is reflected in the rent proposals for the 2020-22 period, with
an assumed CPI level of 2.5%.

2.21.3 Right to Buys over the 2019-22 period are assumed to continue at about 173 per
annum based on current trends.

2.21.4 Updated budget forecasts assume void level targets of 1.1%, and gradual annual
uplifts in rent and service charge bad debt provision requirement from 2.1% current
year, to 2.5% by 2021-22. The gradual uplift takes account of predicted rollout of
universal credit, which includes housing benefit, and the likely impact of direct
payment to tenants on income collection going forward.

2.21.5 The social housing green paper also includes the Government proposal not to
progress the ‘higher value’ annual levy or charge, based on higher value property
void rates. The levy was to be re-directed to private registered providers to
compensate them for the loss of housing stock through the introduction of the right
to buy scheme in this sector. This proposal, if enacted, could have been a
significant ‘risk’ to the overall financial viability of the HRA 30 year business plan.

2.21.6 HRA revenue reserves commitments include a set aside of £4m for business risks;
in particular, with regard to proposed welfare reform changes. The balance of
commitments includes £1.5m working balance, and the planned build up (sinking
fund) of reserves to support longer term HRA business plan capital investment
requirements.

22
Page 28



2.21.7 The Council, working in partnership KNH, jointly and regularly review and update
the HRA 30 year business plan with the aim to produce a self-financed and
balanced budget positon over the 30 year plan that delivers the key objectives set
out in paragraph 2.21.1 above.

2.21.8 The overall resourcing potential for the HRA will continue to be reviewed through
the remainder of this budget round, factoring in the implications of the green paper,
including capital resourcing capacity. The HRA has £69m current borrowing
headroom potential against the £247m borrowing cap set by Government, and
there may be potential to utilise at least some of this going forward to support the
Council’'s ambitions and plans for housing development and growth.

222 Capital

2.22.1 The updated capital plan 2018-23 is detailed at Appendix D. It also includes a new
year 5 early draft (2023-24).

2.22.2 The updated capital plan also includes some further changes at this stage. This
includes an anticipated £6m Homes England grant to fully fund accelerated site
development and disposal for housing, at the Soothill and Huddersfield Waterfront
sites, which are included in the list of sites to support the Housing delivery Plan
previously reported to Cabinet on 29 August 2018.

2.22.3 The changes also include a proposed acceleration of baseline HRA works by
£7.5m over the 2019-23 period. The £7.5m proposal groups properties by estate
and geography ensuring workforce, plant and materials can be delivered in a more
efficient manner to take advantage of economies of scale and reduce delivery
costs. A more detailed business case regarding this specific proposal will be
reported to Cabinet in due course. Other HRA capital changes at this stage reflect
current consideration of market provision as the now preferred option for the
particular strategic priority schemes highlighted at Appendix D.

2.22.4 Changes to the plan also include a capitalisation line for transformation activity at
an estimated £3m each year, from 2018-19 onwards, as per current flexible capital
receipts strategy. This also enables the release of existing earmarked revenue
reserves for the reasons as set out earlier at paragraph 2.18.11. While
Government hasn’t indicated its intention to extend the current flexible receipts
strategy guidelines beyond 2021-22, the working assumption here is that they will
be extended into later years, in due course.

2.22.5 Council officers are currently undertaking a major review of the current 5 year
capital plan, including consideration of emerging new capital proposals not
currently in view, to support the delivery of Council priority outcomes over the
medium and longer term. The outcome of this review, including a re-working of
capital plan affordability and re-prioritisation, will be factored into further updated
capital plan proposals for member consideration through the remainder of the
current budget round.

3. Implications for the Council

3.1 The Council’s budget plans support the overall delivery of the following Council

23
Page 29



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

objectives and Priorities within available resources:

i) Early Intervention and Prevention (EIP)
ii) Economic Resilience (ER)

iii) Improving Outcomes for Children

iv) Reducing demand of services

Financial, Legal & Other Implications

A robust Medium Term Financial Plan and budget strategy is a key element of
financial and service planning. This will be updated in detail by full Council in February
2019. This report sets a framework for development of draft plans by officers and
Cabinet, for consideration by all Members in due course.

Key funding and spend assumptions factored into the MTFP update will be subject
to further review, informed by most current local and national intelligence, including
the outcome of the Chancellor's Autumn Budget and the provisional government
2019-20 financial settlement.

Any further material changes to funding and spend assumptions will be considered
for incorporation into the finalised annual budget report for Cabinet and Council
approval in February 2019.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The MTFP update is based on a range of local and national intelligence, and risk
assessments underpinning current and future funding and spend assumptions,
acknowledging that the extent of these are all potential risk factors to the delivery of
balanced budget plans over the medium term. This is summarised at Appendix F,
alongside identified management actions to mitigate the risks.

Budget Planning Framework

The updated budget plans set out in this report provide the budget planning
framework for officers to bring forward proposals to Cabinet and members through
the remainder of the current budget round, in order to deliver a sustainable and
balanced overall multi-year budget over the 2019-22 period.

The key budget timetable milestones for the remainder of this budget round are set
out at Appendix G.

Budget Consultation

The Council's overall budget planning framework includes consideration of wider
engagement and timetabling on stakeholder views on high level priorities in
resource allocation. This will be timetabled for a 6 week period between November-
December. Stakeholder views on emerging HRA budget proposals will be
considered through the relevant Council Tenant stakeholder forums.

24
Page 30



3.9 In addition, there may be a requirement for more detailed service consultations, led
by the relevant services, on specific service budget proposals. These will engage
service users as early as possible, and target the groups most likely to be affected.

3.10 There is also on-going engagement with the business and voluntary and
community sectors.

3.11 Key budget proposals include accompanying evidence available to members;
namely officer led equalities impact assessments, which are undertaken annually and
reviewed and updated as appropriate, on a range of budget proposals. These are
also made available on the Council’s website, in a timely way. This purpose of the
assessments is to ensure that decision makers have due regard to the Council’s
equalities duties on key decisions.

4. Consultees and their opinions

4.1 This report is based on consultation with the Council’s Executive Team and Cabinet
Members in assessing the current issues, risks and factors to be addressed.

5. Next Steps

5.1 Resultant budget proposals will be submitted to Cabinet and full Council. The
Council’s Chief Finance Officer (& Service Director, Finance) will co-ordinate the
development of draft budget proposals and options, and supporting budget
documentation within the budget framework and planning totals.

5.2 Cabinet will bring forward detailed budget proposals in the new vyear, for
consideration at Budget Council on 13 February 2019.

6. Cabinet portfolio-holders recommendations

The portfolio holder supports the recommendations in this report, and welcomes the
changes to the way the budget update has been prepared.

In a time of great uncertainty around the funding of the Council in future years, and
also national and international events having the potential to impact on the Council’s
costs, this budget update takes a pragmatic view in light of all these uncertainties.

It's important that we have a flexibility within the budget to allow us to react to these
uncertainties, and this update allows the degree of flexibility that we need at this time.

The review of the capital plan will allow us to ensure that future spending plans are
the correct ones and the ones that will allow us to invest without involving excessive
risk.

As with all budget updates there has to be a certain amount of assumptions made,
and | believe the assumptions we have made are reasonable and the correct ones
for the position we and the nation finds itself in at this moment in time. Of course
things can and will change, but | believe we have the ability and skills to be able to

25
Page 31



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

react in a manner that will enable us to ensure our finances are sound and the we
can continue to deliver the Council’s outcomes.

Officer recommendations and reasons
Having read this report and the accompanying Appendices, Cabinet are asked to:

approve the updated baseline general fund revenue & HRA budget forecasts over
the 2019-22 period set out at Appendix A (general fund) and Appendix C (HRA);

note the funding and spend assumptions informing the updated budget forecasts
as set out in section 2 of this report;

note and endorse the joint Leeds City Region/North Yorkshire Business Rates Pilot
bid for 2019-20;

approve the revisions to earmarked reserves and general balances as set out at
Appendix B ;

note the existing 2018-23 capital budget plans rolled forward as set out at Appendix
D, incorporating a draft year 5;

approve the changes to the existing Plan aset out at Appendix D;

approve the budget planning framework set out in this report,

approve the flexible capital receipts strategy set out at Appendix E,

approve the corporate budget timetable and approach set out at Appendix G; and
approve the budget consultation approach and timetable set out in this report

The above approach allows the updated budget plans to be adjusted subsequently
for major factors identified and sets the basis for officers to update draft service
plans within a clear Council budget framework.

Contact Officer

Eamonn Croston, Service Director, Finance
eamonn.croston@kirklees.gov.uk

Sarah Hill, Finance Manager, Finance
sarahm.hill@kirklees.gov.uk

Background papers and History of Decisions

Annual budget report 2018-20

Government Financial Settlement 2018-19

Technical Consultation — 2019-20 Local Government Finance Settlement
Annual financial outturn and rollover report 2018-19

Financial monitoring report 2018-19; Quarter 1

MHCLG Guidance; flexible capital receipts strategy

Council Corporate Plan 2018-20

26
Page 32



10.

Housing Strategy 2018-23

Service Director responsible
Eamonn Croston, Service Director, Finance
eamonn.croston@kirklees.gov.uk

27
Page 33



General Fund Summary - Funding &
Spending Plans 2019-22

FUNDING AVAILABLE

Business Rates Baseline

2.5% National Funding Reduction 20-21
onwards
Anticipated 19-20 Pool Gain

Revised Business Rates Retention

Council Tax Baseline (18-19 level)
Additional 700 properties per annum
Empty Property Premium

2.99% increase 19-20, 1.99% thereafter
Adult Social Care Precept

Council Tax

New Homes Bonus

Business Rate Reliefs

Housing and Council Tax Admin
Independent Living Fund

Additional Adult Social Care Funding
Other

Total Un-ringfenced Grants

Collection Fund Transfer
TOTAL FUNDING AVAILABLE

SPENDING PLANS
Strategic Director Portfolios

Public Health Funding rolled into
Business Rates
Central Budgets — Existing Plans

Central Budget Adjustments

Planned Savings rolled forwards from
2018-20 MTFP
Review of Existing Planned Savings

Revised Savings

UPDATED SPENDING PLANS BEFORE

SERVICE PRESSURES AND INVESTMENT

APPENDIX A

18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22
£000 £000 £000 £000
(97,446)  (92,823) (118,128) (118,128)
3,203 6,144
(2,000)
(97,446)  (94,823) (114,925) (111,984)
(160,082)  (160,082) (160,082) (160,082)
(1,029)  (2,055)  (3,081)
(360) (360) (360)
(5,192)  (8,803) (12,527)
(12,539)  (12,539) (12,539) (12,539)
(172,621)  (179,202) (183,839) (188,589)
(4,700) (4,000)  (4,000)  (4,000)
(9,575) (6,776)  (6,776)  (6,776)
(2,114) (1,814)  (1,664)  (1,514)
(835) (810) (810) (810)
(3,577)  (7,368)
(436) (372) (372) (372)
(17,660)  (13,772) (17,199) (20,840)
(3,500) (750)
(291,227)  (288,547) (315,963) (321,413)
261,460 262,598 262,598 262,598
25305 25,305
45,967 51,021 51,021 51,021
(3,066) 2,884 7,934
307,427 310,553 341,808 346,858
(16,200)  (29,398) (31,119) (31,384)
2,834 1,438
(16,200)  (26,564) (29,681) (31,384)
291,227 283,989 312,127 315,474

Page 34



APPENDIX A (continued)

General Fund Summary - Funding & 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22
Spending Plans 2019-22 (continued)

£000 £000 £000 £000
UPDATED SPENDING PLANS BEFORE 291,227 283,989 312,127 315,474
SERVICE PRESSURES AND INVESTMENT
Service Pressures
Childrens
High Needs Pressure 6,950 6,100 5,200
Childrens Demand Led Pressures 550 1,100 1,650
Improvement Plan (years 3 and 4) 0 510 510
Adults
Adults Demand Led Pressures 4,300 12,350 19,700
Better Care Funding and Social Care Grant (3,800) (3,800) (3,800)
Offset
Economy and Infrastructure
Schools Transport - High Needs Pressure 1,000 1,000 1,000
Loss of Driver Training Contract 400 400 400
Total Pressures 0 9,400 17,660 24,660
Service Investment
Childrens
Learning Investment (Portage and Access 420 420 420
Fund)
Liquid Logic - post implementation 240 240 240
support & maintenance
Restorative practice team investment 600 600 600
Economy and Infrastructure
Fire Safety/Health and Safety 310 310 310
Additional Regeneration Capacity 300 300 300
Corporate
Information Governance 200 200 200
Business Intelligence 130 130 130
Total Investment 0 2,200 2,200 2,200

UPDATED SPENDING PLANS INCLUDING 291,227 295,589 331,987 342,334
SERVICE PRESSURES AND INVESTMENT

BUDGET GAP 0 7,042 16,024 20,921

Page 35



APPENDIX B

GENERAL FUND RESERVES

School Reserves (9,827) 0 0 (9,827) (9,827) (9,827) (9,827)

Earmarked Reserves

Financial Resilience (37,146) 0 0 (37,146) (37,146) (37,146) (37,146)
Workforce Restructure (5,091) 5,091 0 0 0 0 0
Transformation (4,944) 4,944 0 0 0 0 0
Rollover (3,463) 0 1,200 (2,263) (1,063) 0 0
Revenue Grants (10,615) 703 2,000 (7,912) (5,912) (3,912) (1,912)
Stronger Families (1,924) 0 0 (1,924) (1,924) (1,924) (1,924)
Prepayment Reserve (3,055) 3,055 0 0 0 0 0
PFI

:nsu)rance (1,900) 0 0 (1,900) (1,900) (1,900) (1,900)
Ward Based Activity (706) 0 250 (456) (206) 0 0
Property and Other 0 (3,000) 0 (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)
Loans

Adverse Weather 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000)
Strategic Investment 0 (4,000) 0 (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000)
Support

Other (2,905) 0 500 (2,405) (1,905) (1,405) (905)

(71,749) 2,793 3,950 (65,006) (61,056) (57,287) (54,787)

General Balances (7,207)  (2,793) 0 (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)

Grand Total (88,783) 0 3,950 (84,833) (80,883) (77,114) (74,614)

Note - Reserves with balances as at 15t April 2019 are described overleaf.

Page 36



Glossary of Reserves

APPENDIX B (continued)

T

School Reserves

Financial Resilience

Rollover

Revenue Grants

Stronger Families

Insurance

Ward Based Activity

Property and Other
Loans

Adverse Weather

Strategic Investment
Support

Other

General Balances

Statutory reserves relating to both individual schools
balances/deficits carried forwards, and Dedicated
Schools Grant (ring-fenced for schools related
expenditure)

Covers a range of potential costs highlighted in the
Council’s corporate risk assessment, including budget
risks as set out in the sensitivity analysis within this
report.

To fund deferred spend commitments against approved
rollover

Represents grants and contributions recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
before expenditure has been occurred.

Represents deferred expenditure commitments
supporting a range of Stronger Families activity.

Mitigates against risk from increased liabilities and
insurance claims.

To fund deferred ward based activity commitments

Set aside against the potential risk of future loan default.
Arising from the introduction of a new local government
accounting code intended to strengthen balance sheet
transparency.

Mitigates against budget risk arising from severe weather
events in the District.

To address the likely scale of one off costs required to
support the scale of regeneration capital investment over
the 2018-24 period.

A range of smaller reserves earmarked for specific
purposes, each less than £0.6m.

General reserve available for Council use, excluding
Housing Revenue Account purposes. Minimum level
proposed to be £10m going forwards.

Page 37



APPENDIX C

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) SUMMARY MTFP 2018-22

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Repair & Maintenance
KNH Fee 22,800 21,242 20,900 20,900 20,900
Housing Management
Policy & Management 13,622 13,172 13,172 13,172 13,172
Council services bought in 2,493 2,463 2,463 2,463 2,463
KNH Fee 16,577 15,745 15,745 15,745 15,745
Special Services (Communal) 1,652 1,517 1,517 1,517 1,517
Sub-total 34,344 32,897 32,897 32,897 32,897
Other Expenditure
Depreciation charge 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500
Interest on capital debt 8,454 8,132 7,903 7,587 7,587
Bad Debt Provision 2,652 2,752 2,852 2,952 2,952
Levy (High value voids) - - - 0 0
Other 684 1,614 2,557 3,510 3,510
Sub-total 28,290 28,998 29,812 30,549 30,549
Total Expenditure 85,434 83,137 83,609 84,346 84,346
Dwelling rent income (79,734) (79,875) (80,625) (83,264)  (83,264)
Government Grant* (7,912) (7,912) (7,912) (7,912) (7,912)
Tenant & Leaseholder charges (3,186) (3,392) (3,674) (3,800) (3,800)
Other (916) (937) (958) (980) (980)
Total Income (91,748) (92,116) (93,169) (95,956) (95,956)
Net Operating Expenditure (6,314) (8,979) (9,560) (11,610) (11,610)
Contribution to capital 6,314 8,979 9,560 7,651 4,430
Transfer to / (from) reserves 0 0 0 3,959 7,180
Net Bottom Line 0 0 0 0 0

Current & forecast HRA Reserves-Month 4 Monitoring

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
As at April 1 (60,358)  (45,403) (42,001) (41,660) (45,619)
Transfers to/from HRA - - (3,959) (7,180)
In-year capital funding 9,258 3,402 341 - -
Earmarked - business risk 4,000 - - - -
Earmarked — working balance 1,500 - - - -
In-year forecast (HRA) 197 - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 (45,403)  (42,001) (41,660) (45,619) (52,799)

Page 38



Summary Capital Plan & Funding Summary

2019/20 - 2023/24 Capital Plan

Expenditure Summary

2019/20 | 2020/21

£'000

£'000

2021/22
£'000

2022/23
£'000

Appendix D

2023/24
£000

Total
£'000

General Fund:
Strategic Priorities 58,270 40,316 10,895 1,526 544 | 111,551
Baseline 36,694 30,655 25,581 25,331 25,331 | 143,592
Risks & Pressures 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000
General Fund Capital Plan | 95964 = 71,971 37,476 27,857 26,875 260,143
Housing Revenue Account:
Strategic Priorities 10,961 7,650 6,000 6,000 6,000 | 36,611
Baseline 16,168 15,767 16,675 16,375 14,605 | 79,590
HRA Plan 27,129 23,417 22,675 22,375 20,605 116,201
CTOTALEXPENDITURE 123,003 95388 60,151 50,232 47,480 376344
Assumed Slippage -29,207 -22,565 -16,789 -12,728 -11,011 | -92,300

Funding Summary

2019/20 | 2020/21

£'000

£'000

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24
£'000

Total
£'000

Direct / Earmarked Contributions to Schemes
Capital Grants / Contributions applied
-In Year 22,865 15,602 14,114 13,864 13,864 | 80,309
-Funding brought forward (previous yr) 9,850 5,192 4,760 4,760 4,760 | 29,322
-Funding carried to next year -5,192 -4,760 -4,760 -4,760 -4,119 | -23,591
Earmarked Capital Receipts 1,590 1,590 1,590 1,590 1,620 7,980
Revenue Contributions (HRA) 12,381 9,901 7,651 4,430 6,958 | 41,321
Reserves (HRA) 11,917 11,493 13,579 16,500 12,202 | 65,691
Pooled Resources
Non Earmarked Capital Receipts 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 | 40,000
Commercial Loan Repayments 4,000 8,000 8,500 2,848 0| 23,348
Corporate Prudential Borrowing 57,682 40,370 6,717 3,000 4,195 | 111,964
Assumed Slippage :
Borrowing Slippage -26,355 -19,523 -14,015 -10,004 -8,287 | -78,184
Grants Slippage -2,852 -3,042 -2,774 -2,724 -2,724 | -14,116

Page 39



2018/19 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 5Yr Total
£' 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Learning & Early Support

New Pupil Places in Primary/Secondary Schools G/B 10.975 . 9848 972 545 544 544 12.453
5106 ’ ! !

Delivery of an Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) School to mitigate
expend»ilture on out of a?ea ASD pIacemenScs | ; g 150 I 1,000 1,500 350 0 0 2,850
Learning & Early Support Total 11,125 . 10,848 2,472 895 544 544 15,303
Adults Social Care Operation .
Pump Prime & Commissioning Specialist Accommodation B 750 . 1,250 0 0 0 0 1,250
Commissioning Option Appraisals to facilitate outcomes of
Specialist AccogmrsodatioipStrategy ¢ 250 I >00 0 0 0 0 >00
Adults Social Care Operation Service Total 1,000 . 1,750 0 0 0 0 1,750
Economy Regeneration & Culture .
Aspirational Regeneration of Major Town Centres - Feasibility B 500 .
Regeneration of Strategic Town Centres - Dewsbury B 915 . 7,000 7,085 0 0 0 14,085
Regeneration of Strategic Town Centres - Huddersfield B 1,050 . 12,172 10,759 6,500 0 0 29,431
Spen Valley Leisure Centre B 500 . 1,500 8,000 3,500 232 0 13,232
Spen Valley Leisure Centre - KAL Contribution B* 0 . 0 0 0 750 0 750
Huddersfield Leisure Centre B 34 . 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dewsbury Learning Quarter B 376 . 2,000 0 0 0 0 2,000
Local Growth Fund B 550 |} 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highways G 151 | 0 0 0 0 0
HD-One (KSDL) B 1,000 ff 8,000 4,000 0 0 0 12,000
Property Investment Fund B 8,000 . 9,000 8,000 0 0 0 17,000
Kirklees College Loan B 6,000 . 0 0 0 0 0 0
Site Development G of 6000 0 0 0 0 6,000
Economy Regeneration & Culture Total 19,076 . 45,672 37,844 10,000 982 0 94,498
[]
Strategic Priorities Total 31,201 . 58,270 40,316 10,895 1,526 544 111,551

0t abed



Learning & Early Support

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000

Basic Need
Capital Maintenance
Devolved Formula Capital
One-Off Initiatives:

SEND Provision

SEN future needs review — option
appraisal commissioning
Early Years Provision

IT Infrastructure for Children’s
System
Healthy Pupils

Section 106 funded schemes

Completed Schemes
Learning & Early Support Total

Adults Social Care Operation Total

Economy Regeneration & Culture
Housing Private Sector

Disabled Facilities Grants

Discretionary Assistance

Minor Adaptations

Other

Housing Private Sector Total
Economic Resilience

KAL - Self Funded

Strategic Asset Utilisation
/Rationalisation
Leeds City Region Revolving Fund

Economy Regeneration & Culture
Total

Commercial Regulatory &
Operational Services
Highways
Maintenance :
Principal Roads
Roads Connecting Communities
Local Community Roads

G 836 |
¢ 479 |}
G 939 i}
[]

6 352 |}
B 150 II
G 193 i}
R 447 II
G 358 [
ot 2,157 .
G 106 [}
10,342 ||}

Ll

G 300 [
[l

[]

[]

¢ 3452 |}
R 163 |
R 450 .
¢ 2,001 [}
6,066 |

¥ 4203 l
8 3,456 I}
B 2,560 I
s 1,632 [
17,937 I

ii

[]

Ll

¢ 2,605 ||}
¢ 2074 |
¥ 287 l

2,152
3,600
900

352
500
0

7,504

700

2,721
100
290

3,111
900
500

300

4,811

2,600
1,369

2,247

2020/21
£'000

500
3,400
850

352

o/ o ol o o o

5,102

2,721
100
290
432

3,543
900
617

5,060

2,600
1,164

2,247

2021/22
£'000

500
3,200
800

o ool o o o |o

4,500

2,721
100
290

3,111
900
617

4,628

2,600
856

2,247

2022/23
£'000

500
3,000
750

o oo o o o |o

4,250

2,721
100
290

3,111
900
617

4,628

2,600
856

2,247

2023/24
£'000

500
3,000
750

o/ ool o o o |o

4,250

2,721
100
290

3,111
900
617

4,628

2,600
856

2,247

Page 41



2018/19 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 2023/24
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Structures G 1,678 . 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
Street Lighting Replacement - 3,172 I 3,000 3,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Strategy
Unadopted Roads B 130 . 50 50 50 50 50
Integrated Transport : .
Integrated Public Transport B/G 806 . 300 0 0 0 0
Network Management B/G 442 . 100 100 100 100 100
Cycling & Walking B/G 135 . 20 20 20 20 20
Safer Roads B/G 1,545 . 650 650 650 650 650
Town Centre Car Parking B 596 . 100 100 100 100 100
Flood Management and
Drainage B/G 1,451 680 680 680 680 680
Improvements
Developer Funded Schemes 5106 1,452 . 0 0 0 0 0
Highways Total 18,958 . 12,316 11,811 9,503 9,503 9,503
Corporate Landlord Asset B 5,665 I 4,250 2,300 1,300 1,300 1,300
Investment
Transport B 2,317 . 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250
Environment & Strategic Waste B 148 . 100 100 100 100 100
School Catering Eﬁ 488 . 400 400 400 400 400
Electric Vehicle Charge Points G 547 . 0 0 0 0 0
Commercial Reg & Operational Total 28,123 . 18,316 15,861 12,553 12,553 12,553
Office of the Chief Executive .
Ward Based Activity B 192 . 0 0 0 0 0
Office of the Chief Executive Total 192 . 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Services .
Information Technology B;/ 2,792 l 2,363 1,632 900 900 900
Flexible Caplt§I Receipts Strategy . 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
- Transformation
Corporate Services Total 5,792 . 5,363 4,632 3,900 3,900 3,900
TOTAL BASELINE || 62,686 I 36,694 30,655 | 25581 25331 25331

FUNDING KEY:
B = Borrowing

B* = Service funded Borrowing - Work is ongoing to remove this category and have one system of prudential borrowing.

G = Grant
R = Capital receipts

Page 42



2018/19 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 2023/24
£'000 I £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Strategic Priorities =
Housing Growth H/R 4,320 - 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 20,000
New Build Phase 1 - Ashbrow Extra Care H/G 990 - 3,961 1,650 0 0 0 5,611
New Build Phase 2 - Soothill Extra Care H/R 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0
New Build Phase 3 H/R o 0 0 0 0 0 0
New ‘Build Phase 4 - Environmentally Friendly MR (4,111) . 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing
Garage/Green Space Development Phase 1 H/R 2,038 - 0 0 0 0 0 0
Remodelling / High Rise H 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 10,000
Strategic Priorities H/R 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0
IT System (Universal Housing Replacement) H 0 - 1,000 0 0 0 0 1,000

Sub-Total 9,348 - 10,961 7,650 6,000 6,000 6,000 36,611
Baseline =
Housing Capital Plan H 10,889 - 11,006 10,522 11,346 10,960 9,190 53,024
Estate Improvements (Housing Capital Plan) H 1,988 - 731 746 760 775 775 3,787
Compliance H 2,200 - 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000
Fuel poverty H/G 662 - 638 650 663 676 676 3,303
Adaptations H 2,739 - 2,793 2,849 2,906 2,964 2,964 14,476

Sub-Total 18,478 - 16,168 15,767 16,675 16,375 14,605 79,590
TOTAL HRA PLAN ‘ 27,826 . 27,129 23,417 22,675 22,375 20,605 116,201

FUNDING KEY:

H = HRA revenue contribution/major repairs reserve
R = Capital receipts

G = Grant

¢t obed



vt abed

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ORIGINAL CAPITAL PLAN (Council 11.07.18) .
General Fund 91,887 . 86,964 68,971 34,476 24,857
Housing Revenue Account 31,937 . 25,128 25,530 31,596 26,109
TOTAL ORIGINAL EXPENDITURE 123,824 . 112,092 94,501 66,072 50,966

ADDITIONS/REDUCTIONS B

General Fund .
Strategic Priorities — Site Development G 0 . 6,000 0 0 0
Baseline - Corporate Services, Flexible Capital Receipts Strategy R 3,000 . 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Sub-Total 3,000 . 9,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

Housing Revenue Account .
Strategic Priorities - New Build Phase 2 - Soothill Extra Care H/R . 0 (3,631) (3,703) 0
Strategic Priorities - New Build Phase 3 H/R . 0 0 (7,555) 0
Strat_eglc Priorities - New Build Phase 4 - Environmentally Friendly "R (4,111) I 0 0 0 0

Housing

Strategic Priorities - Strategic Priorities H/R 0 . 0 0 0 (5,504)
Baseline — Housing Capital Plan H/R . 2,001 1,518 2,337 1,770
Sub-Total (4,111) . 2,001 (2,113) (8,921) (3,734)
TOTAL ADDITIONS/REDUCTIONS (1,111) . 11,001 887 (5,921) (734)
REVISED CAPITAL PLAN 122,713 . 123,093 95,388 60,151 50,232



APPENDIX E

KIRKLEES COUNCIL - FLEXIBLE USE OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS STRATEGY
Government guidance allows the capitalisation of certain types of qualifying revenue
expenditure in-year, funded from the flexible use of ‘in-year’ generated capital receipts.
It covers in-year capital receipts generated in-year, from 2016-17 to 2021-22 inclusive.

In-year generated capital receipts includes general fund receipts from the sale of general
fund land and buildings. It also includes ‘right to buy’ (RTB) receipts from the sale of
Council houses. These are remaining receipts that are also available to the Council, after
taking account of the Council’s other obligations in relation to RTB receipts generated
in-year.

It is proposed that consideration be given to applying ‘in-year’ capital receipts generated,
to fund the following qualifying capitalised revenue expenditure, in line with original
DCLG guidance issued in March 2016, as follows :

funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff or non-
staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service transformation;

driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how the
public interacts with constituent authorities where possible;

The time period relating to the above qualifying expenditure covers 2017-18 and the
following 4 years. The original DCLG guidance covered the 2016-19 period, but this was
subsequently extended by a further 3 years, to 2021-22, following the Autumn Statement
announcement on November 17th, 2017.

The extent to which capital receipts will actually be applied in-year will take into account

the following factors :

i) the amount of capital receipts actually generated in-year;

ii) the amount of qualifying capitalisable revenue expenditure in-year;

iii) the affordability of borrowing to fund the capital plan in-year, where current funding
assumptions include use of in-year capital receipts to part fund the Councils
annual general fund capital plan

The proposals set out in 3. above are ‘in principle’, and allow officers the ‘flexibility’ to
consider a range of funding options in-year that meet the intended objectives set out in
the Council’s budget strategy update.

It is intended that officers will update members as part of the annual budget report to full
Council each February, and finalised proposals for the flexible use of capital receipts to
be incorporated into an annual early closedown review report for Cabinet consideration
early April.

Page 45



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER & RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN SEPTEMBER 2018

Risk
No

Risk — Description of the risk

Management actions already in place to mitigate the risk

The finances of the Council

particularly in the care sector, impact
on the ability of providers to deliver
activities of the specified quality, and
or impacting on the prices charged
and impacting on the budgets of the
council.

1 A failure to achieve the Councils o Established governance arrangements are in place to achieve planned
savings plan impacts more generally outcomes at Cabinet and officer level
on the councils finances with the o Escalation processes are in place and working effectively.
necessity for unintended savings e Alignment of service, transformation and financial monitoring.
(from elsewhere) to ensure financial |4 Tracker developed which allows all change plans to be in view and monitored
stability on a monthly basis
e Programme management office established and resourced
e Monthly (and quarterly) financial reporting
2 Failure to control expenditure and e Significant service pressures recognised as part of resource allocation in
income within the overall annual 2018/19 and 2019/20
council approved budget leads to the | e Responsibility for budgetary control aligned to Strategic and Service Directors.
necessity for unintended savings e Examine alternative strategies or amend policies where possible to mitigate
(from elsewhere)). The most growth in demand or reduce costs
significant of these risks are related | o Utilise supplementary resources to cushion impact of cuts and invest to save.
to volumes (in excess of budget? of, e Continue to lobby, through appropriate mechanisms, for additional resources
e Complex Adult Care services |o proactive monitoring as Universal Credit is introduced
e Childrens Care Services
e Educational high needs
& * Rent Collection impact of
Universal Credit rollout (H R A)
And in the longer term, the costs of
waste disposal.
3 Above inflation cost increases, e Monitor quality and performance of contracts.

e Be aware of underlying issues through effective communication with service
providers and suppliers about likely impact on prices

¢ Renegotiate or retender contracts as appropriate.

e Ensure that budgets anticipate likely cost impacts

e Seek additional funding as a consequence of government imposed costs

o7 abed




4 Making inappropriate choices in o Effective due diligence prior to granting loans and careful monitoring of
relation to lending or and borrowing investment decisions.
decisions. leads to financial losses. | e Effective challenge to treasury management proposals by both officers and
members (Corporate Governance & Audit Committee) taking account of
external advice
5 Exposure to uninsured losses or e Ensure adequacy of financial revenue reserves to protect the council financial
significant unforeseen costs, leads to exposure and managed effectively not to impact on the council essential
the necessity for unintended savings services.
to balance the councils finances e Consider risks and most cost effective appropriate approach to responding to
these (internal or external insurance provision)
6 A future financial regime set by ¢ Monitor government proposals and legislation, and their impact on council and
government causes a further loss of partner services.
resources or increased and under- e Continue to lobby, through appropriate mechanisms, for additional resources
funded obligations (eg in relation to e.g. Local Government Association (LGA)
social care), with impact on the e Be aware of underlying issues through effective communication with citizens,
strategic plans. partners, service providers and suppliers about likely impact on resources
e Ensure that budgets anticipate likely impacts
e Ensure adequacy of financial revenue reserves to protect the council financial
exposure and managed effectively not to impact on the council essential
services.
Community Impacts & Risks
7 The council does not adequately e Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checking, staff training, supervision,

safeguard children and vulnerable
adults, as a result of increased
complexity, referral volumes and a
lack of service capacity to respond to
the assessed need.

protection policies kept up to date and communicated.

Effective management of social work (and related services); rapid response to
any issues identified and from any serious case review work.

Active management of cases reaching serious case review stage, and any
media interest

Review of current practices following the child sexual exploitation in Rotherham
and the emerging requirements.

Ensure that workloads are balanced to resources.

Staff and skill development to minimise dependence on key individuals.

Use of agency staff and or contractors when necessary

Ideal manager training

Development of market sufficiency strategy; consider approaches to support
the development of the available service offer both locally and regionally.

/¥ abed




Ensure competence of the Safeguarding Boards and that they are adequately
resourced to challenge and improve outcomes

Ensure routine internal quality assessment

Take effective action after Serious Case Reviews

Effective listening to messages about threats from other parts of the council
and partner agencies

Proactive recognition of Members role as “corporate parent”

Childrens Improvement Board to assist governance and quality improvement

8 The heightened national attention to | ¢ Additional resources and expertise allocated to new and historical Child Sex
Child Sexual Exploitation and Exploitation (CSE) work.
historical abuse cases causes e Risk matrix and risk management approach implemented with the police and
reputational issues, and resource partners.
demands to address consequential | « Oversight of Council risks through the CSE Member Panel.
matters. e Understand relationship with the Prevent strategy, and issues linked to counter

terrorism
e Take steps per risk 1 to seek to avoid ongoing issues

9 Failure to address matters of violent |e Prevent partnership action plan.
extremism and related safer stronger |« Community cohesion work programme
community factors create significant |e Local intelligence sharing and networks.
community tension, (and with the o New status as a Prevent Priority Area provides funding for a Prevent
potential of safeguarding Coordinator Post and enables the development of bids for additional funding.
consequences for vulnerable e Counter terrorism local profile.
individuals. e Home Office funded Counter Extremism Community Co-ordinator role

10 Significant environmental events e Effective business continuity and emergency planning (including mutual aid)
such as severe weather impact on investment in flood management, gritting deployment plans.
the Council’s ability to continue to e Winter maintenance budgets are supported by a bad weather contingency.
deliver services. e Operational plans and response plans designed to minimise impacts (e.g. gully

cleansing for those areas which are prone to flooding.)
11 The policy presumption of e Reduced demand for statutory services

gt abed

communities taking more
responsibility for service provision
does not deliver the hoped for
outcomes, with the consequence that
some community services will no
longer be sustainable from the

If the reduction is not realised at the pace set out, (in change plans) then those
services that are directly impacted will need to identify this early, and to help in
doing so, ensure that appropriate demand management and monitoring is put in
place to record the levels of service take up. Remedial action should also be
identified by those services.

Successful implementation of new service models




resources available, with reputational
and policy risks.

e Impact assessments for those services directly affected should be carried out to
reflect the impact on citizens of losing a service as a consequence of the pace
and scale of new service models not meeting demand.

[

The UK exiting the EU

The process of the UK exiting the EU | These risks are largely addressed elsewhere in the Matrix
lead to the following consequences ¢ Monitor government proposals and legislation, and their impact on council and

61 abed

and impact:

Economic uncertainty impact on
business rates and housing
growth, with knock-ons to council
tax, new homes bonus and
business rate income.

The potential for increased cuts in
core government funding (as a
result of economic pressures) in
the context of ongoing increases
in demand for council services.
Rising inflation could lead to
increased costs. And Interest rate
volatility impacting on the cost of
financing the council’s debt.

The general uncertainty affecting
the financial markets could lead to
another recession.

An uncertain economic outlook
potentially impacting on levels of
trade and investment.
Uncertainty about migration
impacting on labour markets,
particularly in key sectors like
health and social care

Potential impact on community
cohesion, with increased
community tensions and reported
hate crimes.

partner services.

Continue to lobby, through appropriate mechanisms, for additional resources
e.g. Local Government Association (LGA)

Be aware of underlying issues through effective communication with partners,
service providers and suppliers about likely impact on prices and resources
Ensure that budgets anticipate likely cost impacts

Utilise supplementary resources to cushion impact of any cuts and invest to
save.

Ensure adequacy of financial revenue reserves to protect the council financial
exposure and that they are managed effectively not to impact on the council
essential services

Local intelligence sharing and networks.

Prevent partnership action plan.

Community cohesion work programme

Service and financial strategies kept under review to keep track of
developments related to the UK exiting the EU.




Other Resource & Partnership
Risks

13 Council supplier and market e Avoid, where possible, over dependence on single suppliers;
relationships, including contractor e More thorough financial assessment when a potential supplier failure could
failure leads to; have a wide impact on the council’s operations but take a more open approach
e loss of service, where risks are few or have only limited impact.
e poor quality service e Recognise that supplier failure is always a potential risk; those firms that derive
e an inability to attract new large proportions of their business from the public sector are a particular risk.
suppliers (affecting competition, e Need to balance between only using suppliers who are financially sound but
and to replace any incumbent may be expensive and enabling lower cost or new entrants to the supplier
contractors who have failed) market.
e complexities and difficulties in e Consideration of social value, local markets and funds recirculating within the
making arrangements in respect borough
of significant and long running e Be realistic about expectation about what the market can deliver, taking into
major outsource contracts. account matter such as national living wage, recruitment and retention issues
etc.
e Develop and publish in place market position statement and undertake regular
dialogue with market.
o Effective consultation with suppliers about proposals to deal with significant
major external changes
e Early consultation with existing suppliers about arrangements to be followed at
the end of existing contractual arrangements
e Realign budgets to reflect real costs
e Commission effectively
e Ensuring adequate cash flow for smaller contractors
14 Management of information from loss | e Thorough, understandable information security policies and practices that are

or inappropriate destruction or
retention and the risk of failure to
comply with the Council’s obligations
in relation to Data Protection,
Freedom of Information legislation
and the General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR) leading to
reputational damage, rectification
costs and fines

clearly communicated to workforce.

Effective management of data, retention and recording.

Raised awareness and staff training

Compliance with IT security policy.

Compliance with retention schedules.

Compliance with information governance policy.

Business continuity procedures.

Comply with new legislation around staff access to sensitive data.

0G| abed




Council has a Senior Information Risk Owner (“SIRQO”) officer and a Data
Protection Officer (DPO) who are supported by an Information Governance
Board

Development of action plan to respond to GDPR requirements and resourcing
requirements as appropriate

Increased awareness of officers and members as to their obligations

15 Health and safety measures are e New Fire Safety Policy approved and being implemented Improved monitoring
inadequate leading to harm to of fire risk
employees or customers and e Prioritised programme of remedial works to buildings to tackle issues
possible litigious action from them e Review work practices to address H&S risks
personally and/or the Health and'  Monitor safety equipment
Safety Executive.(and the potential of | 4 |mproved employee training as to their responsibilities, as employees and
prosecution and corporate /personal (where appropriate) as supervisors
liability)(and in particular issues of
fire safety,)
16 Exposure to increased liabilities ¢ Routine servicing and cleansing regimes
arising from property ownership and |e \Work practices to address risks from noxious substances
management, including dangerous | Property disposal strategy linked to service and budget strategy
structures and asbestos, with e Review of fire risks Develop management actions, categorised over the short
reputational and financial to medium term and resource accordingly.
implications. e Prioritisation of funding to support reduction of backlog maintenance
e Clarity on roles and responsibilities particularly where property management is
outsourced.
17 A funding shortfall in partner e Engagement in winter resilience discussions with NHS partners
agencies) leads to increased e Secure funding as appropriate
pressure on community services with |«  Consider extension of pooled funds
unforeseen costs. e Accept that this may lead to an increase in waiting times
e Strengthen partnership arrangements to ascertain whether other funding or
cost reduction solutions can be introduced.
18 The risk of retaining a sustainable, o Effective Workforce Planning (inc recruitment , retention issues)
diverse, workforce, including e Modernise Human Resources policies and processes
g-? - aging and age profile e Increased accessibility to online training managers/ employees.
% - encouraging pgople toenterhardto |« Selective use of interim managers and others to ensure continuity of progress
e recruit roles (Wh.ICh often have low regarding complex issues
Pt pay, or challenging hours or tasks)




- encouraging entrants to
professional roles where pay is often
below market levels.

Ensure robust change processes including Equality Impact Assessments
(EIA’s) and consultation..

e Understand market pay challenges
and ensuring that the workforce are |«  Promote the advantages of LG employment
broadly content, without whomthe |«  Emphasise the satisfaction factors from service employment
council is unable to deliver its service |, Engage and encourage younger people through targeted apprenticeships,
obligations. training, and career development
19 National legislative or policy changes |e Reprioritise activities
have unforeseen consequences with | e Deploy additional resources
the consequence of affecting o Use of agency staff or contractors where necessary
resource utilisation or budgets.  Development of horizon scanning service

2S abed




APPENDIX G

Corporate Budget Timetable

2018 20ct/ 10 Cabinet & MTFP Update report
Oct Council
Nov to Dec  General budget @ 6 weeks consultation period
consultation
Late Nov Central Gov't Autumn Budget

Mid-Dec Central Gov't Provisional Financial Settlement 2019-20

2019 Mid Jan Cabinet/Council Update to members on the outcome of
the provisional 2019-20 financial
settlement

Council Tax Base report 2019-20
HRA rent & service charge setting report
Schools funding reports

Mid to late | Central Gov't Finalised financial settlement 2019-20

Jan
29 Jan /13 Cabinet & Council annual budget report
Feb Council

Page 53



Sensitivity Analysis

APPENDIX H

Baseline Scenario — Budget Gap

More Optimistic Scenario — Changes to Budget Gap:
Funding Changes

No decrease in national funding — cash limited rates
retention income

No decrease in rolled in Public Health Funding — cash
limited

Fair Funding review outcome - 2% increase in funding
2% uplift per annum in business rates grants

Additional 300 properties per annum

Housing Benefit Grant lower reduction per annum (£100k v
£150k)

Cost Changes
Pay Inflation 1% from 20-21 (vs 2%)

More Optimistic Scenario — Updated Budget Gap

£m £m £m
7.0 16.0 20.9
- (2.5) 4.9)
- (0.6) (1.2)
- (1.9) (3.7)
(0.2) (0.3) (0.4)
(0.4) (0.9) (1.4)
- (0.1) (0.1)
(0.6) (6.3) (11.7)
- (16)  (3.2)
6.4 8.1 6.0

Baseline Scenario — Budget Gap

More pessimistic Scenario — Changes to Budget Gap:
Funding Changes

Higher decrease in national funding — 5% reduction

Higher decrease in rolled in Public Health Funding — 5%
reduction

Fair Funding review outcome — 2.5% decrease in funding
2% reduction per annum in business rates grants

Housing Benefit Grant greater reduction per annum (£300k
v £150Kk)

No Pilot Extension for 2019-20

New Homes Bonus — 5% decrease per annum

Reduction in other unringfenced grants — 2% decrease per
annum

No additional Adult Social Care Monies

Cost Changes
Pay Inflation 1% from 20-21 (vs 2%)

More Pessimistic Scenario — Updated Budget Gap

£m £m £m
7.0 16.0 20.9
- 2.1 4.1
- 0.6 1.2
- 2.3 4.5
0.2 0.3 0.4
0.2 0.3 0.4
2.0
0.2 0.4 0.6
0.1 0.1
3.6 7.4
2.6 9.7 18.7
- 16 | 32 |
9.6 27.3 42.8

Page 54



G Kirklees Agenda Item 9:

COUNCIL
Name of meeting: Cabinet
Date: 2"d October 2018
Title of report: Introduction of a Civil Penalty Policy for Housing Act

offences
Purpose of report
To outline a policy to allow the council to implement the new powers on civil penalties

introduced by the Housing and Planning Act 2016. These will be an additional enforcement
tool alongside prosecution for a range of offences under the Housing Act 2004

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in Yes
spending or saving £250k or more, or to
have a significant effect on two or more
electoral wards?

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward | Yes
Plan (key decisions and private reports?)

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by Yes

Scrutiny?

Date signed off by Strategic Director & Karl Battersby - 3.09.2018
name

Is it also signed off by the Service Director -
Finance? Eamonn Croston - 6.09.2018

Is it also signed off by the Service Director -

Legal Governance and Commissioning? Julie Muscroft - 20.09.2018
Cabinet member portfolio Councillor Cathy Scott - Adults &
Independence
Electoral wards affected: All Wards

Ward councillors consulted:  Not Applicable
Public or private: Public
1. Summary

i.  New housing enforcement legislation has been introduced to give local authorities the
power to impose a civil penalty as an alternative to prosecution for certain housing
offences

ii.  When the legislation was introduced it was expected that this power would be used
robustly as a way of clamping down on rogue landlords. Raising the level of civil
penalty to £30,000 was considered important because a smaller fine may not be
significant enough for landlords who flout the law to think seriously about their
behaviour and provide good quality, private sector rented accommodation for their
tenants.

iii.  The council is required to develop and document a policy to be used in determining
the appropriate level of civil penalty in a particular case.
iv.  The policy proposed reflects the levels of penalty agreed with other West Yorkshire

Authorities. Page 55


https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139

Vi.

Vii.
Viii.

Xi.

Information required to take a decision

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 gives local authorities the power to impose a civil
penalty of up to £30 000 as an alternative to prosecution for certain specified housing
offences under the Housing Act 2004.
The specified housing offences covered are:-

e Failure to comply with an Improvement Notice

e Offences in relation to licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)

e Offences in relation to licensing of houses under Part 3 of the Act

¢ Offences of contravention of an overcrowding notice

e Failure to comply with management regulations in respect of HMOs
The local housing authority is the enforcing body and the same criminal standard of
proof is required for a civil penalty as for prosecutions. The local housing authority
must be satisfied that if the case were to be prosecuted in the magistrates’ court,
there would be a realistic prospect of conviction.
Civil penalties cannot be used for failure to comply with a Prohibition Order. Instead
the council can seek a rent repayment order in addition to prosecuting the landlord.
The legislation does not allow the council to impose a civil penalty and prosecute for
the same offence.
Housing Officers have developed a policy in conjunction with housing colleagues from
other West Yorkshire Authorities to ensure consistency in both levels in penalty and
service application
See Appendix A for proposed Civil Penalty Policy (Housing & Planning Act 2016)
As with landlord prosecutions for offences under the Housing Act 2004, civil penalties
will be undertaken by the Housing Compliance team within the Housing Solutions
Service
The level of civil penalty is to be determined on a case-by-case basis with a maximum
penalty of £30,000. The policy includes a matrix to determine the level of penalty
dependent upon the levels of culpability and harm.
The policy also outlines both aggravating and mitigating factors which will be
considered as part of any adjustments to the initial determination.
The final determination of any civil penalty will adhere to the general principle:-

e The civil penalty should be fair and proportionate but in all instances should act

as a deterrent and remove any gain as a result of the offence

Implications for the Council
3.1 Early Intervention and Prevention (EIP)

¢ Civil penalties are designed to prevent the small number of rogue or criminal
landlords from profiting from renting out unsafe and substandard
accommodation and deter others from undertaking such activities. Effective
communications to publicise civil penalties and their impact will help promote
high quality standards and practices within the private rented sector.

3.2 Economic Resilience (ER)

e The introduction of civil penalties will support the Economic Resilience
Vision of combining a strong sustainable economy with a great quality of life
by tackling poor landlords and driving up good quality private rented
accommodation and management practices.

3.3 Improving Outcomes for Children

e Eliminating poor quality housing and driving up good quality accommodation
will improve well-being for the entire family. Page 56



3.4 Reducing demand of services

e Disrupting the business model of poor landlords and driving them out of the
private rented market will reduce demand upon the reactive service of the
Housing Compliance team.

3.5 Other (eg Legal/Financial or Human Resources)

e Income received from a civil penalty can be retained by the local housing
authority to further their statutory functions in relation to their enforcement
activities covering the private rented sector.

4. Consultees and their opinions

i. Officers have been working with housing colleagues across the region to develop a
robust policy. Additionally, staff procedures, guidance, communications and training
plans have been developed for Housing Compliance Officers. Through this
partnership approach neighbouring councils and landlords, operating across
administrative boundaries, are provided consistency.

ii. Legal Services have reviewed the all Notice templates

iii. Councillor Mather has also been consulted given the enforcement aspect

5. Public Sector Equality Duty

i.  Members are reminded that before making any decisions that they have a legal duty
to consider the Equality Act 2010, Section 149, which introduced a public sector
equality duty that the Council must in the exercise of their functions , have due regard
to the need to

a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation;

b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it. Protected characteristics are:
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

ii.  Members should have due regard to the Equality Impact Assessment which has
minimal impact on groups with protected characteristics - See Appendix B.

6. Next steps
I. Housing Officers to further develop the range of additional measures introduced
through the Housing and Planning Act 2016 including rent repayment orders, rogue
landlord database and Banning Orders for the most serious and prolific offenders
7. Officer recommendations and reasons
Cabinet is asked to:-
I Introduce civil penalties as an alternative to prosecution for offences under the
Housing Act 2004
ii.  Approve the Civil Penalty Policy (Housing & Planning Act 2016) — See Appendix A

8. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations

The Portfolio Holder is fully supportive of introducing civil penalties as an additional
tool to tackle rogue landlords and drive up property conditions and manageme

practices within the private rented sector rlsage S7



10.

11.

Contact officer

Stephen Cale

Operations Manager

Housing Solutions Service
(01484) 221000
stephen.cale@kirklees.gov.uk

Background Papers and History of Decisions

Civil penalties under the Housing and Planning Act 2016 — Guidance for Local
Housing Authorities: MHCLG, April 2018

Service Director responsible

Naz Parkar

Director for Housing
(01484) 221000
naz.parkar@kirklees.gov.uk

Page 58


mailto:stephen.cale@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:naz.parkar@kirklees.gov.uk

KIRKLEES COUNCIL
CIVIL PENALTY POLICY
(HOUSING & PLANNING ACT 2016)

Page
1. Introduction 1

2. Enforcement 2
3. Deciding on the most appropriate course of action 2

a) Investigation
b) Decision to prosecute or serve a Civil Penalty Notice

w w

4. Procedure for imposing a civil penalty
a) Notice of Intent
b) Representations
c) Civil Penalty Notice Factors
d) Withdrawing or Amending a NOI or CPN
e) First Tier Tribunal appeal
f) Recovering the Monetary Penalty
g) Recording the decision

AP bhArDbdprrbdwww

5. Determining the level of civil penalty
a) Factors
b) Initial Civil Penalty Levels
c) Level of Culpability
d) Level of Harm
e) Adjustments to the Initial Determination
f) Final determination of the level of any civil penalty
g) Owner’s ability to pay

0000 N NN U

=
o

6. Consequences of imposing a civil penalty

7. Definitions
a) What do we mean by a vulnerable individual? 10

Page 1 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 59



This policy is intended to work in accordance with Kirklees Council’s Enforcement Policy and
the ‘Civil penalties under the Housing and Planning Act 2016 - Guidance for Local
Authorities’ published by the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG).

1. Introduction

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduces a number of amendments to the Housing Act
2004. Section 249A of the Housing Act 2004 establishes the legal basis for imposing civil
penalties as an alternative to prosecution for specific offences.

The specified housing offences are:

e Failure to comply with an Improvement Notice (section 30)

e Offences in relation to mandatory licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)
(section 72)

e Offences in relation to licensing under Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 (section 95)

e Failure to comply with an overcrowding notice (section 139)

e Failure to comply with management regulations in respect of HMO (section 234)

The Housing Solutions Service has been working at a regional level with other West
Yorkshire authorities in order to ensure consistency in policies and procedures.

2. Enforcement

The same criminal standard of proof is required in order to impose a civil penalty as is
required to prosecute, therefore the Housing Solutions Service will follow the same
investigative procedure. This procedure includes inviting the landlord(s) for an interview
under the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) (in this policy the term “landlord”
also includes property agents and letting agents, unless specified otherwise). The Housing
Solutions Service will liaise with the legal team to ensure that it can be demonstrated
beyond reasonable doubt that the offence has been committed. The legal team will have
consideration of the Crown Prosecution Service Code for Crown Prosecutors, the Criminal
Justice Act 2003 and the Offences Taken into Consideration and Totality. As a prerequisite,
the council will satisfy itself that if the case were to be presented to the Magistrates’ court,
there would be a realistic prospect of conviction before deciding whether to impose a civil
penalty.

3. Deciding on the most appropriate course of action

The legislation does not allow the council to impose a civil penalty and prosecute for the
same offence, therefore it must be decided which is the most appropriate sanction. In
deciding whether to prosecute or impose a civil penalty, the Housing Solutions Service will
refer to the Guidance for Local Authorities, which states “Prosecution may be the most
appropriate option where an offence is particularly serious or where the offender has
committed similar offences in the past”.

Page 2 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 60



a) Investigation
The council must be satisfied that a person has failed to comply with the specific sections of

the Housing Act 2004 listed in Schedule 9 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 and that
there is a realistic prospect of conviction before progressing to the next stage.

An investigation will be carried out by a Housing Solutions Officer (HSO), Senior Housing
Solutions Officer (SHSO) and/or Team Manager. The investigation may include consulting
relevant public records, liaising with other enforcing authorities, checking the Rogue
Landlord database, liaising with Customer and Exchequer, having regard to previous
communications with the person and other lawful investigation activity that the
investigating officer considers appropriate.

An integral part of the investigation will be an interview with the person under the Police
and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE).

On completion of the investigation the Housing Solutions Service will decide, after
consulting the legal team, whether there is a realistic prospect of conviction. Where the
Housing Solutions Service has decided that there has been non-compliance with a realistic
prospect of conviction, they will progress to the next stage.

b) Decision to prosecute or serve a Civil Penalty Notice

The decision regarding whether to pursue a prosecution or serve a Civil Penalty Notice (CPN)
will be made on a case-by-case basis in line with this policy. Prosecution may be the most
appropriate option where an offence is particularly serious or where the offender has
committed similar offences in the past. However, that does not mean civil penalties will not
be used in cases where serious offences have been committed. A civil penalty of up to
£30,000 can be imposed where a serious offence has been committed and the council may
decide that a significant financial penalty (or penalties if there have been several breaches),
rather than prosecution, is the most appropriate and effective sanction in a particular case.

The HSO will discuss the case with a SHSO and/or Team Manager and propose a decision.
Authorisation to proceed with imposing a financial penalty will be authorised by an
Operations Manager.

4. Procedure for imposing a civil penalty

a) Notice of Intent

When the most effective sanction is deemed to be the service of a CPN then a Notice of
Intent (NOI) will be served first. This will be served no later than 6 months after it is decided
that there is sufficient evidence of the conduct to which the penalty relates, or at any time
when the conduct is continuing. The NOI will be served by the officer who was involved in
the investigation and in making the decision.

Included in the NOI will be the proposed financial penalty, therefore this must be agreed
prior to the NOI being served. Details on how this will be calculated can be found within

Page 3 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 61



Section 5 - Determining the level of Civil Penalty. Authorisation of the level of financial
penalty will be given by an Operations Manager.

b) Representations

A person on whom the NOI is served has 28 days from the day after the date on which the
notice was served to make written representations in relation to the proposed financial
penalty.

If written representations are received within this 28 day period the decision to impose a
penalty will be reviewed by the Team Manager. Taking into account the representations the
Team Manager will decide whether to impose a penalty and, if so, the amount.

If it is decided to proceed with a financial penalty a CPN must be served.

c) Civil Penalty Notice

The CPN will be served on the recipient of the NOI. The CPN will be prepared by the HSO
and will be signed off by a Team Manager or Operations Manager. The recipient is required
to pay the penalty within 28 days.

d) Withdrawing or Amending a NOI or CPN
The council may withdraw either notice or reduce the amount specified in the notices at any
time by giving notice in writing.

e) First Tier Tribunal Appeal

Where the council receives notice that a recipient of a CPN has made an appeal the matter
will be referred to the Team Manager to decide how the council will respond. Where a
person has appealed to the First Tier Tribunal the CPN is suspended until the appeal is finally
determined or withdrawn.

f) Recovering the Monetary Penalty
The monies will be recovered by using the council’s existing debt recovery processes.

If the penalty imposed is not paid within the appropriate time period, either 28 days from
the date of the CPN or within such time as determined by the First Tier Tribunal the council
will commence proceedings to recover the debt owed. This will include the recovery of any
additional costs to the council from having to undertake such action. This process will be
the council’s existing recovery policy and procedures for the collection of such debt,
including pursuance of the debt via the county courts if appropriate.

A certificate signed by the Chief Finance Officer for the council, including the outstanding
amount due, will be accepted by the courts as conclusive proof of any outstanding payment
due to the council.

g) Recording the decision
A record of each decision and the reasons for the financial penalty will be made by the HSO.
How the amount of the penalty was obtained and the calculations will also be recorded.

Page 4 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 62



5. Determining the level of Civil Penalty

a) Factors

The statutory guidance makes it clear that the level of civil penalty is to be determined by
each council on a case-by-case basis, with a maximum penalty of £30,000. The maximum
level of civil penalty is reserved for the very worst offenders.

In setting the level of civil penalty, the council may conclude that the offender is able to pay
any financial penalty imposed unless the offender has supplied any financial information to
the contrary. Itis for the offender to disclose to the council such data relevant to his/her
financial position as this will enable it to assess and determine what they can reasonably
afford to pay.

The factors that will be taken into account when determining an appropriate level of civil

penalty are:

e Severity of the offence —the more serious the offence, the higher the penalty will be.

e Culpability and track record of the offender — a history of failing to comply with their
obligations and/or their actions were deliberate and/or they knew, or should have
known, that they were in breach of their legal responsibilities.

e The harm caused to the tenant — the greater the harm or potential for harm, the higher
the amount will be when imposing a civil penalty.

e Punishment of the offender — while the penalty should be proportionate and reflect
both the severity of the offence and any pattern of previous offending, it is important
that it is set at a high enough level to help ensure that it has a real economic impact on
the offender and demonstrates the consequences of not complying with their
responsibilities.

e Deter the offender from repeating the offence — the ultimate goal is to prevent any
further offending and help ensure that the landlord fully complies with all of their legal
responsibilities in future. The level of the penalty will therefore be set at a high enough
level such that it is likely to deter the offender from repeating the offence.

e Deter others from committing similar offences — While the fact that someone has
received a civil penalty will not be in the public domain, it is likely that other landlords in
the local area will become aware through informal channels when someone has
received a civil penalty. An important part of deterrence is the realisation that a) the
local housing authority is proactive in levying civil penalties and b) that the level of civil
penalty will be set at a high enough level to both punish the offender and deter repeat
offending.

b) Initial Civil Penalty Levels

The table below shows the initial level of fine for each level of culpability and harm,
including the minimum level of fine which will be imposed for each classification. These are
the levels agreed at regional level.

Page 5 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 63



Determination of Initial Civil Penalty Level
Level of Level of Harm Minimum Fine
Culpability High Medium Low Level
High £25,000 £15,000 £7,500 £6,000
Medium £15,000 £10,000 £5,000 £4,000
Low £7,500 £5,000 £2,500 £2,000

c) Level of Culpability
The level of culpability will be decided taking account the following factors:

High level
A landlord will be deemed to be highly culpable when they intentionally or recklessly breach

or wilfully disregard the law. For example:
e They have a history of non-compliance
e Despite a number of opportunities to comply, have failed to do so
e Have been obstructive as part of the investigation
e Failure to comply results in significant risk to individuals
e Are a member of a recognised landlord association or accreditation scheme
e Are a public figure who should have been aware of their actions
e Are an experienced landlord with a portfolio of properties failing to comply with
their obligations
e Serious and/or systematic failure to comply with their legal duties

Medium level
A landlord commits an offence through an act or omission a person exercising reasonable
care would not commit. Examples are:
e [tis afirst offence — with no high level culpability being met e.g. a member of an
accreditation scheme
e Failure is not a significant risk to individuals
e The landlord has systems in place to manage risk or comply with their legal duties
but these were not sufficient or adhered to or implemented

Low level
A landlord fails to comply or commits an offence with little fault. For example:
e No or minimal warning or circumstances/risk
e Minor breaches
e Isolated occurrence
e Asignificant effort has been made to comply but was inadequate in achieving
compliance

The above examples are not exhaustive and other factors may be taken into account when
considering the level of culpability.

VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 64

Page 6 of 11



d) Level of Harm
When considering the level of harm both the actual, potential and likelihood of the harm
will be considered.

High level
A high level of harm could constitute:

e Serious effect on individual(s) or widespread impact

e Provides a serious market advantage over rivals — deliberately avoided works or
regulations or committed the offence to gain additional income

e Harm to a vulnerable individual (see section 7. Definition)

e High risk of an adverse effect on an individual

e Serious level of overcrowding

Medium level
A medium level of harm could constitute:
e Adverse effect on an individual — not high level of harm
e Medium risk of harm to an individual
e Low risk of a serious effect
e The council’s work as a regulator to address risks to health is inhibited
e Consumer/tenant misled

Low level
A low level of harm could constitute:
e Low risk of harm or potential harm
e Little risk of an adverse effect on individual(s)

The above examples are not exhaustive and other factors may be taken into account when
considering the level of harm.

e) Adjustments to the Initial Determination

In order to determine the final penalty the council will consider both aggravating and
mitigating factors in each case. These will adjust the initial level of the penalty based on
these factors.

Below is a list of both aggravating and mitigating factors which will be considered as part of
the determination. The list is not exhaustive and other factors may be considered
depending on the circumstances of each case.

Aggravating factors could include:

e Previous convictions having regard to the offence to which applies and time elapsed
since the offence

e Motivated by financial gain

e Obstruction of the investigation

e Deliberate concealment of the activity/evidence

e Number of items of non-compliance — greater the number the greater the potential
aggravating factor

Page 7 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 65



e Record of letting substandard accommodation
e Record of poor management/ inadequate management provision
e Lack of a tenancy agreement/rent paid in cash

When considering previous offences regard should be given to the guidance on Banning
Orders as well as any relevant offence such as trafficking etc.

Mitigating factors could include:

e Cooperation with the investigation e.g. turns up for the PACE interview

e Voluntary steps taken to address issues e.g. submits a licence application

e Acceptance of responsibility e.g. accepts guilt for the offence(s)

e Willingness to undertake training

e Willingness to join recognised landlord accreditation scheme

e Health reasons preventing reasonable compliance — mental health, unforeseen
health issues, emergency health concerns

e No previous convictions

e Vulnerable individual(s) where their vulnerability is linked to the commission of the
offence

e Good character and/or exemplary conduct

For each aggravating or mitigating factor which applies to each specific case the level of fine
will be adjusted by 5% of the initial fine, up to the maximum £30,000 or to the minimum
fine for each determined level of culpability and harm as shown in the table above.

The only exception to this principle will be for the number of items of none compliance
which will be 5% for the first 5 items and 10% for any number of items greater than this
level of none compliance with items on any notice which has not been complied with.

The Council will take into account a reduction in the level of the penalty for an admission of
guilt.

There is a one off third reduction in the penalty if at the first opportunity the landlord
admits guilt for the offence and immediately remedies any outstanding issues. This is in line
with the Sentencing Guidelines and will only be available for the first offence. Any
subsequent offences will not be subject to any reduction.

The discount will only be provided to the landlord when the council serves the NOI and the
following criteria is met:

e The payment is made within the 28 days of the date of the NOI

e The payment is made in full.

At any point after 28 days of service of the notice of the NOI there will be no further offer of
any reduction in the level of penalty.

This reduction will only be implemented if the level of gain is below the civil penalty. If the
level of gain is above the reduction but less than the calculated penalty the reduction will be
the level of gain plus £2,000 or 10% whichever is the greater.

Page 8 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 66



f) Final determinate of the level of any civil penalty
The final determinate of any civil penalty must be the general principle:

THE CIVIL PENALTY SHOULD BE FAIR AND PROPORTIONATE BUT IN ALL INSTANCES SHOULD
ACT AS A DETERRENT AND REMOVE ANY GAIN AS A RESULT OF THE OFFENCE

The statutory guidance states that a guiding principle of civil penalties is that they should
remove any financial benefit that the landlord may have obtained as a result of committing
the offence. This means that the amount of the civil penalty imposed must never be less
than what it would have cost the landlord to comply with the legislation in the first place.

When determining any gain as a result of the offence the council will take into account facts
which may be deemed as obtaining a financial gain. These could include the following
issues:

e Cost of the works required to comply with the legislation

e Any licence fees avoided

e Rent for the full period of the non-compliance — reviewed in conjunction with any
Rent Repayment Order

e Any other factors resulting in a financial benefit — potential cost of rehousing any
tenants by the Council

e As penalty to act as a deterrent

e The cost to the Council of their investigation.

If the level of gain is less than the calculated penalty the reduction will be the level of gain
plus £2,000 or 10% whichever is the greater to the maximum of £30,000.

When determining whether a penalty is fair and proportionate then the following issues will
be considered:

e Impact of the financial penalty on the offender’s ability to comply with the law
e Impact of the penalty on third party — employment of staff, customers etc.
e Impact on the offender —is it proportionate to their means — loss of home etc.

If it is claimed that they are unable to pay and show their income is small then there will be
consideration given to whether the property they own can be sold or refinanced.

g) Owner’s ability to pay
An owner has the right to make representations and/or appeal regarding the level of
penalty including their ability to pay.

As part of the process there will be a need to undertake an investigation into a landlord’s
ability to pay any fine. As part of the investigation the following needs to be considered:

e Company House records if a limited company

e Credit checks — these will should outstanding debts and commitments on properties
they own

e Sijze of portfolio — sell a property to finance the penalty

e Refinance — ability to raise money against their asset base

e Rental income on their portfolio not the property to which the offence relates

Page 9 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 67



e Personal income including their own home

Where the council is not satisfied that it has been given sufficient reliable information, the
council will be entitled to draw reasonable inferences as to the offender’s means from
evidence it has heard and from all the circumstances of the case. This may include the
inference that the offender can pay any financial penalty.

However when considering the level of any financial penalty the final determining factor will

always be the level of financial gain as a result of the landlord’s failure to comply with the
relevant legislation.

6. Consequences of imposing a Civil Penalty

Financial penalties are an alternative to criminal proceedings. Unless withdrawn and the
council determines that, in the public interest, a prosecution for the ordinal offence is the
preferred option then a landlord cannot be prosecuted for the same offence once the
penalty has been paid and the matter concluded.

Where a civil penalty has been imposed on a landlord it will not automatically prevent the
council from granting a licence under Part 2 or 3 of the Housing Act 2004. The council will
consider each case on its merits including the reasons for the penalty and the extent of the
person’s involvement in any property under consideration.

Where a person has received two financial penalties under this legislation in any 12 month
period, irrespective of the locality to which the offences were committed, a council will
consider making an entry on the national database of rogue landlords and property agents.
When considering making an entry, the council will have regard to any guidance issued by
the Secretary of State and best practise available.

7. Definition

a) What is meant by a vulnerable individual?

The statutory guidance states that the harm caused and vulnerability of the individual are
important factors in determining the level of penalty.

The Housing Act 2004 defines a vulnerable individual as one who is at greater harm and
therefore the penalty should be greater when vulnerability is an issue.

The following are considered vulnerable individuals:
e Elderly person
e Children
e Pregnant women
e Receives domiciliary care
e Has health needs — mental health, drug dependency, alcohol dependency, terminally
ill etc.
e Requires assistance in conducting their own affairs

Page 10 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 68



e Has payments made to him/her or to an accepted representative in pursuance of
arrangements under the Health and Social legislation.

e Receives a service or participates in any activity provided specifically for persons who
have particular needs because of age, has any form of disability or has a prescribed
physical or mental problem.

e Those who have difficulty in understanding, speaking or reading English

e Anindividual in a difficult situation such as bereavement or threat of deportation
etc.

The above list is not exclusive and other factors may affect vulnerability when considering
the level of any penalty.

END

Page 11 of 11 VERSION: FINAL —10JULY18

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



A guide to equality Impact Assessments (ElAs)

What are Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)?

. ElAs are a tool to help you analyse and make more considered decisions about changes to service
delivery, policy and practice. An EIA will help you to identify how specific communities of interest may be
affected by decisions and to consider any potential discriminatory impact on people with protected

. ElAs can also help to improve or promote equality by encouraging you to identify ways to remove
barriers and improve participation for people with a protected characteristic.

Why do we need to do Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)?

. Although not a mandatory requirement, EIAs provide important evidence of how we have considered the
implications of service and policy changes and demonstrate how we have met our legal Public Sector Equality
. The three main elements of the Public Sector Equality Duty are:

v" Eliminating discrimination
v" Promoting equality of opportunity
v Fostering good relations

. In fulfilling our Public Sector Equality Duty we must ensure that we demonstrate that we have followed a
number of key principles (based on previous case law):

v" Knowledge

v' Timeliness

v" Real consideration

v’ Sufficient information

v" No delegation

v" Review

v Proper record keeping

. We need to provide evidence that we have given due regard to any potential discriminatory impact
on people with protected characteristics in shaping policy, in delivering and making changes to services, and
. We must always consider whether a service change, decision or policy could have a discriminatory
impact on people with protected characteristics, not just any impact that is the same as it would be for everyone
. The EIA tool allows us to capture, demonstrate and publish our rationale of how we have considered

our communities and legal responsibilities under the Public Sector Equality Duty and is our main way of
. But above all, EIAs are about understanding and meeting the needs of local people and

When do we need to do Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)?

. Whenever you plan to change, introduce or remove a service, activity or policy.
. At the VERY BEGINNING of any process of:

v Budget setting

v’ Service review (including changes to employment practice)

v Planning new projects and work programmes

v Policy development and review

v Procurement or commissioning activity

Who should do it?

. Overall responsibility for ElAs lies at a service level. A lead officer should be appointed from the service
area that is making a proposal and all decisions should be approved by the senior management team in that
. Those directly affected (partners, stakeholders, voluntary groups, communities, equality groups etc)

How should we do it?

e Our EIA process has two stages:
Stage 1 - initial screening assessment
Stage 2 - further assessment and evidence

Page 71



EIA STAGE 1 — SCREENING TOOL (initial assessment)

The purpose of this screening tool is to help you consider the potential impact of your proposal at

an early stage.

Please give details of your service/lead officer then complete sections 1-3:

1) What is your proposal?

2) What level of impact do you think your proposal will have?
3) How are you using advice and evidence/intelligence to help you?

You will then receive your stage 1 assessment score and advice on what to do what next.

Directorate:

Senior Officer responsible for policy/service:

Economy & Infrastructure

Helen Geldert

Service:

Lead Officer responsible for EIA:

Housing Services

Stephen Cale

Specific Service Area/Policy:

Date of EIA (Stage 1):

Housing Solutions Service

18/09/18

Go back ‘

Move to next
section

Page 72



1) WHAT IS YOUR PROPOSAL? P:fggeofﬂg"t
To introduce a service, activity or policy (i.e. start doing something) YES

To remove a service, activity or policy (i.e. stop doing something) NO

To reduce a service or activity (i.e. do less of something) NO

To increase a service or activity (i.e. do more of something) YES

To change a service, activity or policy (i.e. redesign it) NO

To start charging for (or increase the charge fo.r) a service or activity (i.e. NO

ask people to pay for or to pay more for something)

Please briefly outline your proposal and the overall aims/purpose of making this change:

To introduce new legislation as an additional enforcement option to tackle rogue private
landlords and their properties

Go back ‘ Move tc_> next ‘
section

Page 73



2) WHAT LEVEL OF IMPACT DO YOU THINK YOUR PROPOSAL WILL

Level of Impact

HAVE ON... Please select from drop down
Kirklees employees within this service/directorate? (overall) Neutral
Kirklees residents living in a specific ward/local area? Neutral
Please tell us which area/ward will be affected: All
Residents across Kirklees? (i.e. most/all local people) Neutral
Existing service users? Positive

Each of the following protected characteristic groups?

(Think about how your proposal might affect, either positively or negatively, any individuals/communities. Please
consider the impact for both employees and residents - within these protected characteristic groups).

Please select from drop down

What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...age
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...disability
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...gender
reassignment ) . ) . ) )
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
R . .. |Whatimpact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...marriage/ civil
partnership ) ) ) . ) )
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...pregnancy &
maternity ) ) ) . i .
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...race
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
. What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...religion &
belief ) ) ) . ! i
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
..5ex
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral
What impact is there on Kirklees employees/internal working practices? Neutral
...sexual
orientation ) . ) . ) )
What impact is there on Kirklees residents/external service delivery? Neutral

Go back

Move to next
section

Page 74



Please select YES or

3) HOW ARE YOU USING ADVICE AND EVIDENCE/INTELLIGENCE TO HELP YOU? Mo
Have you taken any specialist advice linked to your proposal? (Legal, HR etc)? YES
...employees? YES
...Kirklees residents? NO
Do you have any evidencelintelligence to support your |...service users? NO

assessment (in section 2) of the impact of your proposal

on... ...any protected characteristic groups? [NO

Please list your evidence/intelligence here [you can include hyperlinks to files/research/websites]:

The Civil Penalty Notice Policy has been developed with the other four West Yorkshire Authorities. It is consistent with
national guidance and local authorities across the country will be developing similar policies.

The new policy does not need external consultation as it is simply integrating existing ways of working into a consolidated
document and describes how the available legislation will be used to improve property standards across the District.

Poor quality housing in the private rented sector is often occupied by more vulnerable individuals. The proposed policy will
enable the Council to penalise any individual/organisation that commits a housing offence by failing to comply with housing
legislation.

Compliance with housing legislation will ensure that housing conditions are improved by removing hazards that are
prejudicial to the health and safety of tenants. This should indirectly improve opportunities available to those with protected
characteristics.

Please select from
drop down
To what extent do you feel you are able to mitigate any potential negative impact of your proposal on
the different groups of people outlined in section 2? FULLY
To what extent do you feel you have considered your Public Sector Equality Duty? FULLY

Move to next

Go back .
section

Page 75



STAGE 1 ASSESSMENT

IMPACT RISK
Based on scoring of Based on scoring of
1) and 2) 2) and 3)
5 3

You need to move on to complete a Stage 2 assessment if:

The final Impact score is negative and or the Risk score is negative.

‘ Go back |

Page 76



G Kirklees Agenda Item 10:

COUNCIL
Name of meeting: Cabinet
Date: 2 October 2018

Title of report: Written Questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members
(Reference from Council)

Purpose of report
To receive written questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members that were not dealt with at the

previous meeting of Council, held on 12 September 2018, in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 12(8).

Key Decision - Is it likely to result in N/A
spending or saving £250k or more, or to
have a significant effect on two or more
electoral wards?

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward | N/A
Plan (key decisions and private reports?)

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by No
Scrutiny?

Date signed off by Strateqic Director & N/A
name

Is it also sighed off by the Service Director N/A
for Finance IT and Transactional Services?

Is it also signed off by the Service Director | Yes —24/9/18
for Legal Governance and Commissioning
Support?

Cabinet member portfolio N/A

Electoral wards affected: N/A
Ward councillors consulted: N/A

Public or private: Public

Page 77


https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139

1. Summary

Cabinet will receive any written questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members that were not
dealt with at the previous meeting of Council, held on 12 September 2018, in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 12 (8). Any such questions will only be responded to if the Member who
submitted the question to the meeting of Council is in attendance to ask the question.

Council Procedure Rule 12(8) also permits members to request a written response to their
guestion within 7 days of the Council meeting taking place.

2. Information required to take a decision

The schedule of questions submitted to Council is appended to this report.

3. Implications for the Council

3.1 Early Intervention and Prevention (EIP)

N/A

3.2 Economic Resilience (ER)
N/A

3.3 Improving Outcomes for Children
N/A

3.4 Reducing demand of services
N/A

3.5 Other (eg Legal/Financial or Human Resources)
N/A

4. Consultees and their opinions

N/A
5. Next steps
N/A
6. Officer recommendations and reasons
N/A (no decision is required)
7. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations
N/A (no decision is required)
8. Contact officers

Andrea Woodside, Principal Governance Officer
Julie Muscroft, Service Director (Legal, Governance and Commissioning)

Page 78



COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday 12 September 2018

WRITTEN QUESTIONS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE
RULE 12

(1) Question by Councillor Greaves to the Cabinet Member for Learning &
Aspiration (Councillor Ahmed)

“‘What is the precise wording and method used to determine the ‘nearest
available school’ as set out in the School Transport Policy that was adopted by
the Cabinet in January 20187”
The Cabinet Member to respond

(2)  Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

(Councillor Turner)

“How long before the expiry of a blue badge does the Council recommend that
the owner applies for a renewal?”

The Cabinet Member to respond
(3) Question by Councillor D Hall to the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride)

“Will Kirklees be submitting a response to the current Calderdale Local Plan
consultation?”

The Cabinet Member to respond
(4) Question by Councillor Smith to the Leader of the Council
(Councillor Pandor)

“Could you give Council a brief update on your trip to China on behalf of the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority?”

The Leader of the Council to respond

(5) Question by Councillor Smith to the Deputy Leader of the Council
(Councillor Sheard)

“How likely is it that the Industrial Action by Refuse workers will be repeated and
have their concerns been addressed?”

The Deputy Leader to respond
Page 79



(6) Question by Councillor Iredale to the Leader of the Council (Councillor
Pandor)

“What reassurances can the Leader give that there won’t be another bin strike in
the foreseeable future?”

The Leader of the Council to respond

(7)  Question by Councillor Cooper to the Cabinet Member for Economy
(Councillor McBride)
“Now that the Government has indicated that Councils can set their own energy
efficiency standards for new buildings in their local plan, how will the Council

respond to this opportunity?”

The Cabinet Member to respond

Page 80



	Agenda
	2: Minutes of previous meeting
	3: Interests
	8: Council Budget Strategy Update Report 2019-22
	bud strategy update report  19-21v3
	APPENDIX A - Gen Fund
	APPENDIX B - GF reserves
	APPENDIX C - HRAreserves
	APPENDIX D - Capital Plan
	APPENDIX E - flex cap receipts
	APPENDIX F - corp register v2_
	APPENDIX G - bud timetable
	APPENDIX H - SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

	9: Introduction of a Civil Penalty Policy for Housing Act offences
	Item 9a Civil Penalty Policy Final 18 09 18
	Item 9b Copy of Appendix B - Civil Penalty Notice EIA Stage 1

	10: Written Questions to the Leader and Cabinet Members (Reference from Council)

